Yapi Kredi Yatirim Menkul Degerler A.S. and its
Subsidiary

Consolidated financial statements for the period January 1 -
December 31, 2013 together with independent auditor’s report

(Convenience translation of financial statements and auditor’s report
originally issued in Turkish, see note 2.6)



{Convenience transiation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish, see note 2.6)

Yapr Kredi Yatirim Menkul Degerler A.$. and its Subsidiary

Content Page
independent auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements...cocvecccecececenees 1-2
Consolidated statement of financial position (Balance Sheet) ... errcrcrmnrcvcrcsnenesncane, 3
Consolidated statement of INCOMES .. st e s 5
Consolidated statement of other comprehensive INCOME . e 6
Consolidated statement of cash floOWSs . 7
Consolidated statement of changes in 80Uy ... s cr s s e reasessns 8

Notes to the consolidated finNancial S1alBIMEIES cu v vrirrrnrrsrerssrntressermerserimiortesmmierersrssessssessns 9-64



Glney Baggmsiz Denetimve  Tel: +90 212 3153000

SHMM AS Fax:+90 2122308291
. Biiyiikdere Cad. 2y.0om
e Beytem Plaza No:z20
Building a better KiG-10, 34381 - Seshi

working world istanbul - Turkey

{“onvenience translation of independent auditor’s report originally issued in Turkish)

independent auditor’s report on consolidated financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2013

To the Board of Directors of
Yap: Kredi Yatinm Menkul Dederler A.S.

Introduction

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of Yapi Kredi Yatinm
Menkul Degerler A.$. (the “Company”) and its consolidated subsidiary (together the “Group”) as of
December 31, 2013, and the related consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and a surmmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Hesponsibility of the Group management related to the financial statements

The Group’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these (consolidated)
financial statemenis in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards (“TAS") published by the
Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA"). This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Responsibility of the independent auditor

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards issued by the Capital Markets Board
{(*CMB"). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstaiement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statemenis,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Group’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimaies made by the Group’s management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidaied financial staterents.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Yapr Kredi Yatinm Menkul Degerler AS. as of
December 31, 2013, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards.

Reporis on independent auditor responsibilities arising from other regulatory requirements

in accordance with Article 402 of the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC"); the Board of Directors
submitted to us the necessary explanations and provided required documents within the context of
audit, additionally, no significant matter has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
Group's bookkeeping activities for the period January 1 — December 31, 2013 are not in compliance
with the code and provisions of the Company’s articles of association in relation to financial reporting.

Pursuant to Article 378 of Turkish Commercial Code, in non-listed companies, an Early Risk
Identification Commitiee is formed when the auditor considers as necessary and gives a written
notification to the Board of Directors. According to subparagraph 4, Article 398 of the code, the
independent auditor is required to prepare a separate report explaining whether the Board of Directors
has established the system and authorized committee stipulated under Article 378 to identify risks that
threaten or may threaten the company and to provide risk management, and, if such a system exists,
the report, the principles of which shall be announced by the POA, shall describe the structure of the
system and the practices of the committee. This report shall be submitted to the Board of Directors
along with the auditor's report. As of the date of the financial statements POA has not announced a
secondary regulation regarding the criteria of the works to be performed by the auditor for the early
identification of the risks and the priniciples of the report. Accordingly, no work has been performed to
form an auditor's opinion on whether the establishment of an early risk identification committee within
the body of the Company is necessary and no report has been prepared for this purpose.

Additional paragraph for convenience translation into English of financial statements originally
issued in Turkish

As at December 31, 2013, the accounting principles described in Note 2 (defined as Turkish
Accounting Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting Standards) to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements differ from International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board with respect to the application of inflation accounting,
certain reclassifications and also for certain disclosures requirement of the POA/CMB. Accordingly, the
accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended fo present the financial position and
results of operations in accordance with IFRS.

Giney Badimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali MUsavirlik Anonim Sirketi

—AyEE Zeynep
Pariper, SMMM

Febyuary 7, 2014
istanbul, Tarkiye
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Convenience translation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish, see note 2.6
Yapt Kredi Yatirim Menkul Dederler A.$. and its Subsidiary

Consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2013 and 2012
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

{Audited) {Audited)

Assels Notes December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Current Assets

3.275.859.983

2.247,104,193

Cash and cash equivalents 6 2.945.925,831 1.712.217.411
Financial investment 7 57.337.570 326.635.933
Trade receivable 10 219.998.046 184.558.956
- Due from related parties 29 5.236.140 3.915.294
- Due from other parties 214.761.806 180.643.662
Receivables from financial activities 1 4.804.569 4.775.008
- Due from related parties 3.766.797 4.712.024
- Due from other parties 1.037.772 62.984
Other receivables 12 39.029.776 9.804.262
- Due from related parties - -
- Due from other parties 39.028.776 9.804.262
Derivative financial instrumenis 16 6.107.020 3.010
Prepaid expenses 19 2.628.167 1.908.817
Current period tax assets - 7.200.475
Other current asset 20 128.934 321
Sub Total 3.275.959.983 2.247.104.193
Assets classified as held for sale 8 - 38.415.407
Total current assets 3.275.252.983 2.285.519.600
Non-current assets
Financial investments 7 31.713.607 12.489,795
Property and equipment 13 5.451.013 5.271.568
Intangible assets 14 1.062.331 1.053.828
- Other intangible assets 14 1.062.331 1.053.828
Defferad tax assets 22 29.391.558 385.061
Total non-current assets 67.618.509 19.200.252
Total assets 3.343.578.492 2.304.719.852

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Convenience translation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish, see note 2.6
Yap Kredi Yatinm Menkul Degerler A.$. and its Subsidiary

Consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2013 and 2012

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

(Audited) {Audited)
Liabilities Notes December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Shori term liabilities 2.799.134.634 1.745.974.061
Short term financial liabilities 9 2.526.465.504 1.684.820.190
Trade payables 10 94.164.029 44.063.694
- Due to related pariies 29 1.8964.073 3.365.971
- Due to other parties 92.199.956 40.697.723
Payables due to employee benefits 18 1.011.126 956.447
Other payables 12 6.777.184 3.008.031
- Due to related parties - 236.192
- Due to other parties 28 6.777.184 2.772.83%
Derivative financial instrumenis 16 137.527.565 330.938
Current income taxes payable 22 18.712.044 1.656.766
Short term provisions 17 10.006.04¢9 9.443.502
- Short term provisions for employee benefits 17 8.624.000 8.355.000
- Other short term provisions 15 1.382.048 1.088.502
Other short term liabilties 20 4.471.133 1.693.483
Other short term liabilities 2.799.134.634 1.745.974.061
Long term liabilities 4.906.120 13.371.630
Long term provisions
- Provision for employee benefits 17 4.906.120 4.846.490
Deferred tax liability 22 - 8.5625.140
Other long term liabilities 4.906.120 13.371.630
Total labilities 2.804.040.754 1.759.345.691
Ecquity
Paid-in share capitai 21 98.918.083 98.918.083
Adjustment to share capital 21 63.078.001 63.078.001
Other comprehensive income and expenses to be
reclagsified in profit or loss 21 (12.111.887) 176.686.330
- Revaluation and measurement gains/losses (12.230.505}) 176.686.330
- Other gains/losses 118.618 -
Restricted reserves 21 61.754.4838 62.436.655
Retained earnings 21 55.116.850 70.422.677
Net profit/{loss) for the year 266.496.516 65.634.007
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent 533.252.052 537.175.753
Non-controlling interest 21 6.285.686 8.198.408
Total equity 539.537.738 545,374.161

Total lizbifities and equity

3.343.578.492

2.304.719.852

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Convenience transiation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish, see note 2.6

Yapt Kredi Yatinm Menkul Degerler A.§, and iis Subsidiary

Consolidated statement of income for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

(Audited) (Audited)
December 31, December 31,
Notes 2013 2012
Profit and loss
Hevenue 23 13.345.148.844 10.856.182.835
Cost of sales(-) 23  (13.283.885.620) (10.815.506.724)
Gross profit from commercial activities 61.263.224 40.676.111
Hevenue from financial activities 24 46.563.495 41.554.145
Cost of financial activities (-) 24 (3.305.783) (1.784.029)
Gross profit from financial activities 43.257.712 39.770.116
Gross profit 104.520.936 80.446.227
General adminisirative expenses (-) 25 (67.742.153) {52.315.290)
Selling, marketing and distribution expenses (-) 25 (5.193.663) (3.976.404)
ther operating income 26 576.432.245 212.622.018
Other operating expense {-) 27 (314.392.274) {154.166.094)
Operating profit/(loss) 293.625.091 82.610.457
Profit/(loss) before tax from conitinuing operations 293.625.091 82.610.457
Tax (income)expense for continuing operations
- Current tax expensef/income 22 (52.561.866) {10.083.343)
- Deferred tax income/(expense) 22 28.400.779 (3.884.618)
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations 269.464.004 68.642.496
Net profit for the year 269.464.004 68.642.496
Distribution of profit/loss
Non-controlling interest 2.967.488 3.008.489
Attributable equity holders of the parent 266.496.518 65.634.007

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Convenience fransiation of financial stalements originally issued in Turkish, see note 2.6

Yapi Kredi Yatirem Menkul DeGerler A.$. and iis Subsidiary

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless ctherwise indicated.)

Audited) (Audited)
December December
31,2013 31,2012
Met profit/loss for the period 269.464.004 68.642.496
Other comprehensive income:
Adjustments to net income/(loss) reconciliation
Change in foreign currency translation differences - -
Adjustments/revaluation in financial assets available
for sale (198.077.347) 84.515.584
Profit /loss on cash flow hedges {(effective par of the fair value
changes) - -
Profitloss on toreign net investment hedges (effective part of the
fair value changes) - -
Adjustment of investments carried at equity method from other
comprehensive income in profitloss - -
Other comprehensive income elements adjusted as other profit
or loss 148.272 -
Tax income/expense in other comprehensive income adjusted in
profit or loss 9.130.858 (4.094.297)
- Current tax expense/income - -
- Deferred tax expensefincome 9.130.858 (4.094.297)
Other comprehensive income (188.798.217) 80.421.287
Total comprehensive income 80.665.787 149.063.783
Distribution of total comprehensive income
Non-controlling interest 2.967.488 3.008.489
Attributable equity holders of the Parent 77.698.299 146.065.294

The accompanying notes {orm an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Convenience iranslation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish, see note 2.6

Yapi Kredi Yatirim Menkul Degerler A.S. and its Subsidiary

Consolidated statement of cash flow for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

Notes December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Cash flows from operating activities:
Current period profit 269.464.004 68.642.496
Adjustments to net income/{loss) reconciliation
- Adjustments related to depreciation and amornization (1 3,14) 1.399.749 1.582.323
- Adiustments relaied to provisions 8.620.394 9.394.970
- Adjustments related with interest income and expense 81.816.148 117.644.375
- Unrealized foreign currency conversion adjustments (278.589.378) 29.010.361
- Adjustments refated to fair value losses/gains 221.618.484 {16.630.421)
- Adjustments related to tax expensesfincomes 24.217.485 13.967.961
- Adjusimenis in other components
related with the invesiments or financial activities 66.043.794 (27.374.509)
Changes in working capitat
- Change in trade receivables (35.439.090) (23.700.375)
- Change in other receivables related o operations (29.824.259) {1.251.399)
- Change in trade payables 50.100.335 12.381.510
~ Change in other payables related {0 operations {1.303.078} (6.727.369)
Cash Flow from operating activities
Taxes paid (28.400.779) {18.849.539)
Cash flow from operating activities 349.723.809 158.090.384
Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash outilow for acguisition of tangible (1.587.687) {1.093.386)
and intangible assets
Cash inflow from sale of subsidiary 24.460.924 -
Cash flows from investing activities 22.873.227 (1.093.386}
Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash provided from financial liabilities 833.606.176 737.944.943
Interest paid {160.427.887) {121.007.797)
Dividend paid (86.502.207) {71.212.911)
Cash flows from financial activities 586.676.082 545.724.235
The effect of change in foreign exchange rates 278.589.378 (29.010.361)
on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1.237.862.,496 673.710.872
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 6 1.705.283.561 1.031.572.689
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 6 2.943,146.057 1.705.283.561

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(8)



Convenience translation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish, see note 2.6
Yapt Kredi Yatmm Menkul Degierler A.$. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

1 - Organization and nature of operations

Yap! Kredi Yatinm Menkul Deferler A.S. (named as “the Company” or the “Group” with its subsidiary
in these consolidated financial statements) was established on September 15, 1989 under the name
of Finanscorp Finansman Yatinm Anonim Sirketi, to engage in capital markets transactions and to
serve as a brokerage company in accordance with the Law No. 2499 “Capital Market Law” and related
legislation. In 1896, 99,6% of the shares of the Company were transferred to Yaps ve Kredi Bankasi
Anonim Sirketi (“Bank”). The name of the Company was changed to Yapi Kredi Yatinm Anonim Sirketi
on September 9, 1996 and Yap! Kredi Yatirim Menkul Degerler Anonim Sirketi on October 5, 1998.

As of September 28, 2005, 57,4% of the shares of Yap: ve Kredi Bankasi A.S., the main shareholder
of the Company, were sold in accordance with the share purchase agreement between Cukurova
Holding A.$., several Gukurova Group Companies, Mehmet Emin Karamehmet and Kog Finansal
Hizmetler A.$. ("KFH"), Kogbank N.V. and Kogbank A.$. In the framework of the agreement, KFH
became the uliimate parent company of Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.S. with 57,4% shares. The main
shareholder of the Company is Yapi ve Kredi Bankas! A.S.(YKB) and ultimate parent of the Company
is IKFH.

At the Exiraordinary General Assembly of the Company at December 29, 2006 the decision to legally
merge with Kog Yatinm Menkul Degerler A.S. (“Kog Yatinm”) in accordance with the related articles of
Turkish Commercial Code, Corporate Tax Law, and Capital Market Law and permission of Capital
Markets Board No. B.02.1.SPK.0.16-1955 dated December 15, 2006 and to approve the merger
agreement has been taken. Accordingly, all rights, receivables, liabilities and obligations were
iransferred to the Company due io consequential dissolution without liquidation of Kog Yatinm Menkul
Degerler A.S.

Commercial Registration Office of Istanbul has registered the Extraordinary General Assembly decision
dated December 29, 2006 and the merger agreement as of January 12, 2007 and announced the
registration at Trade Registry Gazette No. 6724 and dated January 16, 2007.

Approval of Financial Staiements;

Consolidated financial statemenis prepared as of December 31, 2013 have been approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company at February 7, 2014. General Assembly and regulatory bodies
have the right to amend the approved financial statements.

The main operations of the Company can be summarized as follows without lending money, except
where legislation allows:

a) Purchasing and selling of capital market instruments according to Capital Market Legislation on
behalf and on account of itself and its customers,

b} Under fulfilling certain reguirements of Capital Market Law and the Capital Markets Board
(“CMB" or “the Board")

- intermediating the issuance and public offering of capital market instruments listed by the Board,

- Intermediating purchasing and selling of capital market instruments issued before for brokerage
activities,

- Purchasing and selling of marketable securities under repurchase and reverse repurchase
agreements,

- Investment consultancy,

- Portfolio management,

- Short selling of marketable securities, borrowing and lending of marketable securities,

- Founding and managing Investment Funds,

- Founding and managing Real Estate Investment and Investment Trusts,

- Intermediating to derivative fransactions,

- Authority for leveraged buyout and sellout transactions

(9)



Convenience translation of financial statements criginally issued in Turkish, see note 2.6
Yapi Kredi Yatuwn Menlad Degerler A.S. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the financial statementis for the year ended December 31, 2013 (Continued)
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

1 - Organization and nature of operations (continued)
c) Performing transactions in exchange markets by being a member of such organizations,
d) Providing custody services in accordance with Capital Market Legislation,

e) Providing services of collection, payment of principal, interest, dividends and related income and
o use the pre-emptive righis {o obtain new shares, free shares and acting as proxy to vote
arising from possession of shares for and on behalf of its customers.

The Company has 10 funds (December 31, 2012: 9) which are established by the Company itself
founded by the Group. As of December 31, 2013, the Group's number of employees is 222 {December
31, 2012: 208) and it has no branches.

The head office of the Company is located at; Yap! Kredi Plaza A Blok Kat:11 Blylkdere Cad. Levent
— Istanbul

2 - Basis of presentation of financial statemenis
2.1 Basis of preseniation
2.1.1 Applicable accounting standards

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Turkish Accounting
Standards ("TAS”) promulgated by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority
(“POA") in compliance with the communiqué numbered 1I-14.1 “Communiqué on the Principles of
Financial Reporting In Capital Markets” (the Communiqué) announced by the CMB on June 13, 2013
which is published on Official Gazette numbered 28676. TAS consists of the Turkish Accounting
Standards, Turkish Financial Reporting Standards and related supplements and interpretations.

The consolidated financial staiements were based on the legal records of the Group and expressed in
Turkish Lira; and they have been subject to certain adjustiments and classifications in order to fairly
present the financial position of the Group in accordance with the Turkish accouting standards issued by
FOA..

2.1.2 Adjustments to financial statements in hyperinflationary periods

With the decision taken on March 17, 2005, the CMB announced that, effective from January 1, 2005,
the application of inflation accounting is no longer required for listed companies in Turkey. The
Group's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with this decision.

2.1.3 Ofisetiing

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enfarceable right to set-oif the recognized amounts and there is an intention to seitle
on a net basis, or realize the asset and setile the liability simultaneously.

2.1.4 Going concern

The Group prepared its financial statements according to the going concern assumption.



Convenignce translation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish, see note 2.6
Yap Kredi Yatirun Menkul Degerler A.$. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended December 31, 2013 (Continued)
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (*TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

2 - Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)
2.1.5 Funetional currency

The financial statements of the Group are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (functional currency). The results and financial position of the
Group is expressed in TL, which is the functional and presentation currency of the Group.

2.1.6 Classifications on the financial statements as of December 31,2012

Based on the decision taken on June 7, 2013 by the CMB at its meeting numbered 20/670, a new
illusirative financial statement and guidance to i has been issued sffective from March 31, 2013, which is
applicable for the companies that are subject to Communigué on the Principles of Financial Reporting in
Capital Markets. Based on these new illustrative financial statements, a number of changes were made
al the Group's consolidated financial statements. The reclassifications in the consolidated statement of
financial position and statement of income of the Group as at December 31, 2012 are as follows

Restated Classification

December, 31 December, 31

Statement of financial position 2012 2012
Financial Investments-short term 60.667.524 326.635.933 (265.968.408)
Cash and cash equivalents 1.775.221.823 1.712.217.411 63.004.412
Financial Investments-fong term 215,453,792 12.489.785 202.963.997
Trade receivables 197.141.236 184.558.956 12.582.280
Receivables from financial activities - 4.775.008 (4.775.008)
Other receivables - 9.804.262 (9.804.262)
GCther receivables 1.996.990 - 1.996.990
Other current assets 1.909.138 321 1.808.817
Prepaid expenses . 1.908.817 (1.908.817)
Payables due to employee benefils - 956.447 (956.447)
Cther short term Jiabilifies 2.649.940 1.683.493 956.447
Short term provisions for employee benefits 11.546.131 8.355.000 3.191.131
Long term provisions for employee benefils 1.655.359 4.846.490 (3.191.131)
Restated Classification

. December, 31 December, 31

Profit and loss statement 2012 2012
Sales 10.885.952.951 10.856.182.835 39.770.116
Revenue from financial activities - 41.554.145 (41.554.145)
Cost of financial activities (-} - {1.784.029) 1.784.029
Credit interest income 17.464.466 - 17.464.466
Other operating income 10.549.354 - 10.549.354
Financial income 184.608.197 - 184.608.197
Other operating income 212.622.018 (212.622.018)
Other operating expense 2.640.063 . 2.640.063
Financial expense 151.526.030 - 151.526.030
Other operating expense {-) - 154.166.094 (154.166.094)




Convenience franslation of financial statements originally issued in Turkish, see note 2.6
Yap Kredi Yaturim Menbul Dederler A.S. and its Subsidiary

Notes 1o the financial statementis for the year ended December 31, 2013 (Continued)
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2 - Basis of presentation of financial stalements (continued)
2.2. Change in accounting policies and errors

Agccounting policy changes taking place as a result of a new TAS/TFRS's first time use are applied in
line with the transition rules if there is any, retrospective or prospectively. If transition rules are absent
for such changes, intended significant changes regarding the accounting policy or identified
accounting mistakes are applied retrospectively and financial statements of prior period are revised
accordingly.

2.3 Change in accounting esiimations

Ii the application of changes in the accounting estimates affects the financial resuits of a specific
period, the accounting estimate change is applied in that specific period, if they affect the financial
resulis of current and following periods; the accounting estimate is applied prospectively in the periods
in which such change is made.

2.4 Changes in accounting policies and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the interim condensed consolidated financial
statemenis as at December 31, 2013 are consisient with those of the previous financial year, except
for the adoption of new and amended TFRS and TFRIC interpretations effective as of January 1,
2013. The effects of these standards and interpretations on the Group’s financial position and
periormance have been disclosed in the related paragraphs.

The new standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective as at January 1, 2013
are as follows:

TFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (Amendment)

The amendment requires the disclosure of the rights of the entity relating to the offsetting of the
financial instruments and some information about the related regulations {eq, collateral agreements).
New disclosures would provide users of financial statements with information that is useful in;

i) evaluating the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements on an entity's financial position
and,

ii) analyzing and comparing financial statements prepared in accordance with TFRSs and other
generally accepted accounting standards.

New disclosures have to be provided for all the financial instruments in the balance sheet that have
been offset in accordance with TAS 32, Such disclosures also apply to recognised financial
instruments that are subject to enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
Jrrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with TAS 32. The amendment affects
disclosures only and did not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

TAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amended) — Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to TAS 1 change only the grouping of items presented in other comprehensive
incame, ltems that could be reclassified {or ‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a future point in time would be
presented separately from items which will never be reclassified. The amendments will be applied
retrospectively. The amendment affects presentation only and did not have an impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.
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2 - Basis of presentation of financial statements {continued)
TAS 12 Employee Benefiis (Amended)

Nurerous changes or clarifications are made under the amended standard. Among these numerous
amendments, the most important changes are removing the corridor mechanism, and recognizing
actuarial gain/(loss) under other comprehensive income for defined benefit plans and making the
distinction between shori-term and other long-term employee benefits based on expected timing of
settlement rather than employee entitlement.

The Group used to recognize the actuarial gain and loss in profit and loss statement before this
amendment. The Group, applied this amendment in the current year, retrospective application of this
amendment is immaterial, therefore the Group did not restate its prior year financial staterments.
However based on the amendment in the presentation of short terrm employee benefits, vacation pay
liability formerly presented in the short term provisions has been retrospectively reclassified to long
term provisions.

TAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (Amended)

As a conseqguential amendment to TFRS 10 and TFRS 12, the TASB also amended TAS 27, which is
now limited to accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in separate
financial staterments. This amendment did not have an impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.

TAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amended)

As a consequential amendment to TFRS 11 and TFRS 12, the TASB also amended TAS 28, which
has been renamed TAS 28 Investmenis in Associates and Joint Ventures, to describe the application
of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates. Transitional requirement
of this amendment is similar o TFRS 11. This amendment did not have an impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

TFRS 10 Consolidaied Financial Statements

TERS10, TAS 27 Consclidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for
consolidated financial statements. A new definition of control is introduced, which is used to determine
which entities are consolidated. This is a principle based standard and require preparers of financial
statiements to exercise significant judgment. This standard did not have an impact on the financial
pasition or performance of the Group.

TFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

The standard describes the accounting for joint ventures and joint operations with joint control. Ameng
other changes introduced, under the new standard, proportionate consolidation is not permitted for
joint ventures. This standard did not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

TFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
TFRS 12 includes all of the requirements that are related to disclosures of an entity’s interests in

subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured entities. The standard affects presentation
only and did not have an impact on the disclosures given by the Group.
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2 - Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)
TEHES 13 Fair Value Measurement

The new Standard provides guidance on how to measure fair value under TFRS but does not change
when an entity is required to use fair value. It is a single source of guidance under TFRS for all fair
value measurements. The new standard also brings new disclosure requirements for fair value
measurements. The new disclosures are only required for periods beginning after TFRS 13 is
adopted. the Group has presented these disclosures in Note 7 and 28.

TFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Produciion Phase of a Surface Mine

Entities are required to apply its requirements for production phase stripping costs incurred from the
start of the earliest comparative period presented. The Interpretation clarifies when production
stripping should lead to the recognition of an asset and how that asset should be measured, both
initially and in subsequent periods. The interpretation is not applicable for the Group and did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Transition Guidance (Amendments to TFRS 10, TFRS 11 and TFRS 12)

The amendments change the fransition guidance to provide further relief from full retrospective
application. The daie of initia! application is defined as ‘the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which TFRS 10 is applied for the first time’". The assessment of whether control exists is made at ‘the
date of initial application’ rather than at the beginning of the comparative period. If the control
assessment is different between TFRS 10 and TAS 27/SIC-12, retrospective adjustments should be
determined. However, if the control assessment is the sams, no retrospective application is required. If
more than one comparative period is presented, additional relief is given to require only one period to
be resiated. For the same reasons TFRS 11 and TFRS 12 has also been amended to provide
transition relief. These amendments did not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.

Immprovements ic TFRSs

Annual Improvements to TFRSs — 2009 - 2011 Cycle, which cortains amendments to its standards, is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, This project did not have an impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.

TAS 1 Financial Statement Prasentation:
Clariiies the difference between voluntary additional comparative information and the minimum
required comparative information.

TAS 18 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Clarifies that major spare parts and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property, plant and
equiprment are not inventory

TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation:

Clarifies that income taxes arising from distributions to equity holders are accounted for in accordance
with TAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendment removes existing income tax requirements from TAS 32
and requires entities to apply the requirements in TAS 12 to any income tax arising from distributions
to equity holders,
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2 - Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

TAS 34 Financial Reporting:

Clarifies the requirements in TAS 34 relating to segment information for total assets and liabilities for
each reportable segment. Total assets and liabilities for a particular reportable segment need to be
disclosed only when the amounis are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker and
there has been a material change in the total amount disclosed in the entity’s previous annual financial
statements for that reportable segment.

Standards issued but not vet effective and not early adopted

Standards, interpretations and amendmenis to existing standards that are issued but not yet efiective
up fo the date of issuance of the consolidated financial statements are as follows. The Group will make
the necessary changes if not indicated otherwise, which will be affecting the consolidated financial
staterments and disclosures, when the new standards and interpretations become effective.

TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
liabilities (Amended)

The amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off’ and also
clarify the application of the TAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as central clearing
house systems) which apply gross sefflement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. These
amendments are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2014.The Group does not expect that these amendments will have significant impact on the financial
pasition or perfarmance of the Group.

TFES 9 Financial Instruments — Classification and measurement

As amended in December 2012, the new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2015. Phase 1 of this new TFRS introduces new requirements for classifying and
measuring financial instruments. The amendments made to TFRS 9 will mainly affect the classification
and measurement of financial assets and measurement of fair value option (FVO) liabilities and
requires that the change in fair value of a FVO financial fiability attributable to credit risk is presented
under other comprehensive income. Early adoption is permitted. The Group is in the process of
assessing the impact of the standard on financial position or performance of the Group.

TFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies

The interpretation clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. It also clarifies that a levy liability is accrued
progressively only if the activity that triggers payment occurs over a period of time, in accordance with
the relevant legislation. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, the
interpretation clarifies that no liability should be recognized before the specified minimum threshold is
reached. The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, with
early application permitted. Retrospective application of this interpretation is required. The Group does
not expect that this amendment will have any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Giroup.
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2 - Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

The new standards, amendmenis and interpretations that are issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) but not issued by POA

The following standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are issued by the
IASB but not yet effective up 1o the date of issuance of the financial statements. However, these
standards, interpretations and amendmenis fo existing IFRS standards are not yet adapted/issued by
the POA, thus they do not constitute part of TFRS. The Group will make the necessary changes to its
consolidated financial statemenis after the new standards and interpretations are issued and become
effeciive under TFRS.

TFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Staiements (Amendment)

TFRS 10 is amended {o provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet
the definition of an investment entity. The exception to consolidation requires investment entities to
account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with TFRS. The amendments
are to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. This
amendment will not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to TAS 36 - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial assets

As a consequential amendment to TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, some of the disclosure
requirements in TAS 36 Impairment of Assets regarding measurement of the recoverable amount of
impaired assets has been modified. The amendments required additional disclosures about the
measurement of impaired assets (or a group of assets) with a recoverable amount based on fair value
less costs of disposal. The amendments are to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2014, Earlier application is permitted for periods when the entity has already
applied TFRS 13. The Group does not expect that this amendment will have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group

Amendments to TAS 39 - Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Amendments to TAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, provides a narrow
exception to the requirement for the discontinuation of hedge accounting in circumstances when a
hedging instrument is required to be novated to a central counterparty as a result of laws or
regulations. The amendments are to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2014. The Group does not expect that this amendment will have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRE 9 Financial Instruments —~ Hedge Accounting and amendments to IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and IAS
39 -IFRS 9 (2013)

in November 2013, the IASB issued a new version of IFRS 9, which includes the new hedge
accounting requirements and some related amendments to 1AS 39 and IFRS 7. Entities may make an
accounting policy choice to continue io apply the hedge accounting requirements of IAS 39 for all of
their hedging relationships. The standard does not have a mandatory effective date, but it is available
for application now; a new mandatory effective date will be set when the IASB completes the
impairment phase of its project on the accounting for financial instruments. The Group is in the
process of assessing the impact of the standard on financial position or performance of the Group.
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2 - Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

Improvements to IFRSs

in December 2013, the [ASB issued two eycles of Annual Improvements to IFRSs — 2010-2012 Cycle
and {FRSs — 2011-2013 Cycle. Other than the amendments that only affect the standards' Basis for
Conclusions, the changes are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014.
Earlier application is permitted.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs - 2010-2012 Cycle

{FRS 2 Share-based Payment:

efinitions relating to vesting conditions have changed and performance condition and service condition
are defined in order to clarify various issues. The amendment is effective prospectively.

{FRS 3 Business Combinations

Contingent consideration in a business acquisition that is not classified as equity is subseguently
measured at fair value through profit or loss whether or not it falls within the scope of IFRS 8 Financial
Instruments. The amendment is effective for business combinations prospectively.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

The changes are as follows: i) Operating segments may be combined/aggregated if they are
consistent with the core principle of the standard. ii} The reconciliation of segment assets to total
assels is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision
maker. The amendments are effective retrospectively.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measuremeant

The porifolic exception in IFRS 13 can be applied to financial assets, financial liabilities and other
contracis. The amendment is effective prospectively.

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets

The amendment tc 1AS 16.35(a) and {AS 38.80(a) clarifies that revaluation can be performed, as
follows:

i) Adjust the gross carrying amount of the asset to market value or ii) determine the market value of
the carrying amount and adjust the gross carrying amount proportionately so that the resulting carrying
amount equals the market value. The amendment is effective retrospectively.

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

The amendment clarifies that a management entity — an entity that provides key management
personnel services — is a related parly subject to the related party disclosures. The amendment is
effective retrospectively.
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Annual Improvemenis to IFRSs — 2011-2013 Cycle
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

An entity may choose to apply either a current standard or a new standard that is not yet mandatory,
but that permits early application, provided either standard is applied consistently throughout the
periods presented in the entity's first IFRS financial statements. The amendment is effective
immediately.

IFFS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment clarifies that: i) Joint arrangements are outside the scope of IFRS 3, not just joint
ventures i) The scope exception applies only fo the accounting in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself. The amendment is effective prospectively

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The portfolio exception in IFRS 13 can be applied to financial assets, financial liabilities and other
contracts. The amendment is effective prospectively.

fAS 40 investment Property

The amendment clarifies the interrelationship of IFRS 3 and IAS 40 when classifying property as
investment property or owner-occupied property. The amendment is effective prospectively.

These amendments did not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
IFAS 14 - interim standard on regulatory deferral accounts

In January 2014, the IASB issued this standard. IFRS 14 permits first-time adopter rate regulated
entities 1o continue 1o recognise amounts related to rate regulation in accordance with their previous
GAAP reguirements when they adopt IFRS. Existing IFRS preparers are prohibited from adopting this
Standard. The Standard will be applied on a full retrospective basis and is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

January 1, 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The Standard is not applicable for the Group and will
not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Resolutions promulgated by the Public Oversight Authority

In addition to those mentioned above, the POA has promulgated the following resolutions regarding
the implementation of Turkish Accounting Standards. “The financial statement examples and user
guide” became immediately effective at its date of issuance; however, the other resolutions shall
become effective for the annual reporting periods beginning after December 31, 2012.

2013-1 Financial Statement Examples and User Guide

The POA promulgated “financial statement examples and user guide” on May 20, 2012 in order to
ensure the uniformity of financial statements and facilitate their audit. The financial statement
examples within this framework were published to serve as an example to financial statements to be
prepared by companies obliged to apply Turkish Accounting Standards, excluding financial institutions
established to engage in banking, insurance, private pensions or capital market. The Group has made
the related classifications stated in Note 2.1.6 inorder to comply with the requirements of this
reguiation,
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2 - Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)
2013-2 Accounting of Combinations under Common Control

In accordance with the resolution it has been decided that i} combination of entities under common
control should be recognized using the pooling of interest method, i) and thus, goodwill should not be
included in the financial statements and iii) while using the pooling of interest method, the financial
statemenis should be prepared as if the combination has faken place as of the beginning of the
reporting period in which the common conirol oceurs and should be presented comparatively from the
beginning of the reporting pericd in which the common control occurred. This resolution did not have
any impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

2013-3 Accounting of Redeemed Share Ceriificates

Clarification has been provided on the conditions and circumstances where the redeemed share
certificales shall be recognized as a financial liability or equity based financial instruments. This
resolution did not have any impact on ihe consclidated financial statements of the Group.

2013-4 Accouniing of Cross Shareholding Invesimenis

i a subsidiary of an entity holds shares of the entity then this is defined as cross shareholding
investment. Accounting of this cross investment is assessed based on the type of the investment and
different recognition principles adopted accordingly. With this resolution, this topic has been assessed
under three main headings below and the recognition principles for each one of them has been
determined.
i} the subsidiary holding the equity based financial instruments of the parent,
i) the associates or joint veniures helding the equity based financial instruments of the
pareni,
iii} the parent’s equity based financial instruments are held by an entity, which is accounted
as an investment within the scope of TAS 38 and TFRS 9 by the parent.

This resolution did not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
25  Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of these financial statements are
summatized below:

(a) Censolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
Subsidiary. Control is exercised when a company has power over financial and operational policies of
a business with the purpose of benefiting from the business’ operations.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, details of the subsidiary and associate of the Group are as
follows:

2013 2012

Share Share
Comgany Name in capital in capital Principal activity
Yap! Kredi Portfdy Yonetimi A.S. (Subsidiary) 87,32% 87,32% Porifolio Management

Yapi Kredi B Tipi Yatinm Orakhgr A.S. (Associate) - 44.97% Portfolio Management
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2 - Basis of presentation of financial staiements (continued)
Subsidiary

Yapi Kredi Porifoy Yonetimi A.S. ("Yapi Kredi Portféy” or “subsidiary”) is subject to full consolidation as
the Company is the main shareholder and has control rights over subsidiary.

The Company's subsidiary Kog Portfdy Yonetimi A.$. ("Kog Portfdy") has legally merged with Yapi
Kredi Portfdy Yénetimi A.S. on December 29, 2006. Accordingly, all rights, receivables, liabilities and
obligations of Yapi Kredi Porifdy were transferred to Kog PortfGy. After merger, the Subsidiary has
changed its title as Yapi Kredi Poriféy Yonetimi A.$. and accordingly the Company has an interest of
87,32% (December 31, 2012: 87,32%) of the voting rights.

Within the context of the Capital Markets Board regulations, the Subsidiary’s principal activities are
managing mutual and private funds and performing discretionary portfolio management (“DPM") for
institutions, endowments and individuals.

The balance sheets and statemenis of income of the subsidiary are consolidated on a line-by-line
basis and the carrying value of the investment held by the Company is eliminated against the related
equity.

The minority shares in net assets and operating results are classified as minority interest,
intercompany transactions and balances between the Company and the subsidiary are eliminated
during consolidation.Subsidiary is consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Company and will no longer be consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Where necessary, accounting policies of the subsidiary have been changed to ensure consistency
wiih the policies adopted by the Company.

Associalte

Within the context of the liquadition process of Yapi Kredi B Tipi Yatinm Ortakligl A.$. which was
performed by Yap: ve Kredi Bankasi A.S. (YKB), it was decided that the shares of other shareholders
sold to YKB with a call price set as TL 2,68 between July 23, 2013 and August 5, 2013 in accordance
with Communiqué of the CMB Series: IV, No: 44 “Communiqué on the Principles Regarding the
Coltection of Corporation Shares through Takeover Bid” and the shares of the Company at YKBYQO,
representing 44,97% of the Company with a nominal value of TL 14.133.181,44 sold to YKB for a
consideration of TL 37.876.926,25. The transfer of the shares was completed as of July 23, 2013 and
the Company has no shares left in the capital of YKBYQ after the share call. As a result of this sale,
the Grup received sales profit of TL 24.460.924 recorded under other operating income in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

(b} Revenue recognation
() Fee and commission income and expenses

Fees and commissions are recognized in the income statement when they are collected
or paid. However, fund management, investment consulting fees, intermediary
commissions and portfolio management commissions are recognized on an accrual
basis. Common stock transaction commissions are netted off with commission rebates
(Note 23).
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()

{ii) Interest income/expense and dividend income

Interest income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis in the relevant period's
income statement.income includes coupen income from fixed and floating income
securities and discounted treasury bills valued by amortized cost, income from reverse
repo and stock exchange money matrket transactions.

Dividend income from common stock investments is recognized when shareholders are
entitled to receive dividend.

Trade receivables

Trading receivables that arise as a result of providing services to the receiver by the Company,
are disclosed by offsetting uneamned financing income. After the unearned financing income,
trading receivables are calculated with the discounted amounts of receivables that are recorded
with their original invoice value and realized in next periods with the effective interest method.
Short term receivables that do not have any specified interest rate are disclosed with their cost
values when there is no major effect of using original effective interest rate.

Financial asseis

The Group classifies and accounts its financial assets as “Fair value through profit or loss”,
*Available-for-sale”, “Loans and receivables” or “Held-to-maturity”.

Sales and purchases of the financial assets mentioned above are recognized at the “settlement
dates”

The appropriate classification of financial assets of the Company is determined at the time of
purchase and according to the “market risk policies” by the Company management, taking into
consideration the purpose of holding the investment.

All financial assets initialty are recognized at fair value with purchase expenses of investment,
except financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

In the Group, financial assets which are classified as “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” are trading financial assets and are either acquired for generating
profit from short-term fluctuations in the price or dealer's margin, or are the financial
assets included in a porifolio in which a pattern of short-term profit making exists
independent from the acquisition purpose.

Trading financial assets are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. i is accepted that the fair value is recognized as the best
buy order as of the balance sheet date. However, if fair values cannot be obtained from
the market transactions, it is accepted that the fair value cannot be measured reliably and
that the financial assels are carried at “amortized cost” using the effective interest
method. All gains and losses arising from these evaluations are recognized in the income
statement.

All gains and losses arising from these evaluations, coupon and interest income are
recognized in “Financial income” account in the income statement.

The assets in this category are classified as current assets.

(21)
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Available for sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are defined as non derivative financial assets other
than the ones classified as “Loans and receivables”, “Held-to-maturity asseis” or
“Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently re-measured at fair value. When fair
value calcutations, based on market prices, cannot be obtained reliably, the available-for-
sale financial assets are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

“Unrealized gains and losses” arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets
classified as available-for-sale are recognized in the equity as "Revaluation fund”, until
there is a permanent decline in the values of such assets or they are disposed of.

When these financial assets are disposed of or impaired, the related fair value differences
accumulated in the equity are transferred to the income statement.

Held-to-maturiiy financial assets

Held-te-maturity financial asseis are non-derivative financial assets that are not classified
under loans and receivables or held-for-trading at the time of acquisition and are not
included in available-for-sale financial assets, with fixed maturities and fixed or
determinable paymenis where management has the intent and ability to hold the financial
assets to maturity. Held-to-maturity financial assets are initially recognized at cost which
is considered as their fair value, The fair values of held-to-maturity financial assets on
initial recognition are either the transaction prices at acquisition or the market prices of
similar financial insiruments. Held-to-maturity securities are carried at "amortized cost”
using the “effective interest method” after their recognition. Interest income earned from
held-to-maturity financial assets is reflected to the statement of income.

There are no financial assets of the Group that were previously classified as held-to-
maturity but cannot be subject fo this classification for two years due to the breaching of
classification principles.

Loans and other receivables

Loans and receivables of the Group which are given with the purpose of providing cash to
the debtor are carried at amortized cost. All loans are recognized in financial statements
afier transferring the cash amounts to debtors.

The Company provides loans to the customers for the share certificate takings.

(22)
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2 - Basis of presentation of financial staiements (continued)

(e}

®

(v} Reverse repurchase agreements

Funds given against securities purchased under agreements (“Reverse Repo”) to resell
are accountad under “Cash and cash Equivalents” on the balance sheet. The difference
between the purchase and determined resell price is accrued over the life of repurchase
agreements using the effeclive interest method and is recorded as receivables from
reverse repo transactions.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation (Note 13).
Depreciation on the tangible assets is provided on straight-line method according to their useful

lives from the date of recognition or assembly of the related asset. The estimated useful lives of
assets are as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Furnitures and fixtures 4-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years
Leasehold improvements 4-5 years

Estimated useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each balance sheet date in order to
detect the effects of changes in the estimates and if appropriate, the changes in estimates are
accounted.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated “recoverable amount”, it is
written down ta its “recoverable amount” and the provision for the impairment in value is
charged to the income statement.

Gains and losses on the disposal of assets are determined by deducting the net book value of
the assets from its sales proceeds and charged to the income statement in the current period,

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant [ease.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of acquired rights, information systems and softwares. These assets
are recorded at original costs and amortized over their estimated useful lives, approximately 3-5
years, using the straight-line method (Note 14}. The useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriaie, at each balance sheet

The Book value of intangible assets are reduced to recoverable value, if impairment exists.

(23)
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Hotes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 {Continued)
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2 - Basis of presentation of financial statiemenis (continued)

(g}

(k)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss are subject to impairment
testing at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment of
financial asset or financial asset group. A financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the assets. That loss event or
events must aiso have an impact cn the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets.

The Group books a provisien for the doubtful receivables when there is an objective evidence
that trade receivables are not fully collectible. The correspondent provision amount is the
difference between the book value and collectible receivable amount. The collectible amount is
the discounied value of trade receivables by effective interest rate including the collectible
guarantees and securities.

In the event of the collections of the doubtful receivables whether the whole amount or some
part of i, after booking the provision for the doubtful receivables, the collected amount is
deducted from the doubtful receivables provision and recorded as income.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
aiowance account. Changes in allowance accounts are recognized in income statement.

With the exception of available for sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
oceurring after the impairment was recognized, previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the exient the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognized.

Financial liabilities
(i)  Repurchase agreements

Securities subject to repurchase agreements ("RBepos”) are classified as “at fair value through
profit or loss”, “available-for-sale” and “held-te-maturity” according to the investment purposes of
the Group and measured according to the portiolio to which they belong. Funds obtained from
repurchase agreements are accounted under “Financial Liabilities” in liabilities and the
difference between the sale and repurchase price is accrued over the life of the repurchase
agreements using the “effective interest method” and is added to the cost of the financial assets

which are subject to repurchase agreements.
The Group has no securities lending transactions
(if}  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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Noies to the financial staiements for the year ended December 31, 2013 (Continued)
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2 - Basis of presentation of financial statemenis (continued)

®

1)

{l)

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of gualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added 1o the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Ali other borrowing costs are recognized in the profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transactions; monetary assets and liabilities are accounted for at the
period-end bid rate of Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey (“CBRT") (Note 29). Gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the income

statement.

Provisions and contingent assets and liabilities

Provisions are recognized when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required 1o settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be
made. When the amount of the obligation cannot be estimated and an outflow of resources is
not probable, it is considered that a "contingent” liability exists and it is disclosed in the related
notes to the financial statements (Note 15).

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the
possibility of an inflow of economic benefits 1o the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized
in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be
realized. Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognized in the financial statements in
the period in which the change occurs.

Finance leases - the Group as lessee

Assets acquired under finance lease agreements are capitalized at the inception of the lease at
the amount of lower of the fair value of the leased asset, and the present value of the lease
payment. Assets acquired under finance lease agreements are classified under property and
equipment and depreciated as per assets useful lives. Liabilities arising from financial lease
agreements are followed under the “Financial lease payables” account in the balance sheet.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 (Continued)
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2 - Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

(1

(m)

&)

Operational lease - the Group as lessee

| eases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease paymenis are recognized in the consolidated income statements as an
expense on a straight fine basis over the lease term. Benefits obtained or to be obtained are
also recorded on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Subsequent events

Subsequent events cover any events which arise between the date of approval of the financial
statements and the balance sheet date, even if they occurred after declaration of the net profit
for the period or specific financial information is publicly disclosed. The Group adjusts its
financial statements if such subsequent events require an adjustment to the financial
statemenis

Related parties

For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, shareholders, subsidiaries of Yapt
ve Kredi Bankasi A.S. with indirect capital relation, Kog Holding A.S. and Unicredito Iltaliano
S.p.A group companies, key management personnel and board members, their families and
companies ars considered as “related parties”.

Taxes calculated on corporate income
Corporaie iax

Corporation tax is calculated in conformity with Tax Procedural Law and tax expenses other
than corporation tax are accounted for in operating expenses (Note 22}.

Turkish tax legisiation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiaries to file a
consolidated tax return. Therefore, provisions for taxes, as reflected in these consolidated
financial statements, have been calculated on a separate-entity basis.

If there is a legal right for offsetting of current tax assets and liabilities or taxation of these
assets and liabilities are determined by the same authority, offsetting is realized.

Deffered tax

Deferred tax is calculated, using the liability method, on all temporary differences arising
between the iax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the financial
statements. Currently enacted tax rates are used to determine deferred income tax at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and jiabilities related to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
are offset accordingly.

Significant temporary differences arise from provision for employment termination benefits,

provision for unused vacation rights, valuation differences of buildings and other fixed assets,
valuation differences of available-for-sale financial assets and various expense provisions.

(26)
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2 - Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)

()

{+)

(s)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, where deferred tax
assets resulting from deductible temporary differences are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilized.

Current tax and deferred tax are accounted as income or expense in the income statement,
except those related to items accounted under “Revaluation fund” in equity

Employee benefiis
Defined benefit plans

The Company accounts for employee termination benefits, vacation rights and other benefits to
employees in accordance with “Turkish Accounting Standard for Employee Rights” (“TAS 19")
and they are classified under “provision for employee benefits” in the balance sheet.

Under the Turkish Labour Law, the Company is required to pay a specific amount to the
employees who have retired or whose employment is terminated other than for the reasons
specified in the Turkish Labour Law. The reserve for employment termination benefits
represents the present value of the estimated total reserve for the future probable obligation of
the Company arising from this liability regarding the actuarial projections and reflected to
financial statemenis (Note 17).

Defined contribution plans

The Company has to pay contribution to Social Security Institution (Institution) for its employees
within the contribution margin decided by the law. The Company does not have other liabilities
to its employees or to Institution other than the contribution for its employees. Those
contributions are expensed on the date of accrual,

(Capital and dividends

Ordinary shares are classified in equity. Dividends over ordinary shares are classified as
dividend payable by deducting from accumulated profits, when the decision of dividend
distribution is taken.

Siatement of cash flows

For the purposes of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include due from banks
with maturity less than three months, receivables from reverse repo transactions and investment
funds.

Share certificates and issuance

At capital increases, the Company accounts the difference between the issued value and
nominal value as share issue premium under equity, in the case where the issued value is

higher than the nominal value. The Company has no decision for profit distribution after the
balance sheet date.

(27)
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2 - Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)
{s) Assets held for resale and discontinued operations

Discontinued operation is defined as a part of the Group with distinguished operations and cash
flows that is disposed of or classified as held for sale. Resulis of discontinued operations are
disclosed separately in the income statement.

A tangible asset (or a disposal group) classified as “asset held for sale” is measured at lower of
carrying value or fair value less costs to sell. An asset {or a disposal group) is regarded as
“asset held for sale” only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in iis present condition. For a highly probable sale, there must be a
valid plan prepared by the management for the sale of asset including identification of possible
buyers and completion of sale process. Furthermore, the asset should be actively in the market
at a price consistent with iis fair value.

(ty Derivative financial instrumenis

The Group's derivative transactions are composed of foreign currencyfinterest rates swaps,
forward contracts and future fransactions. Derivative financial instruments are initially measured
at fair value on the contract date, and are remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
periods.

2.5  Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The Group makes astimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities
or amounts of contingent assets and liabilities, and income and expense reported in the related period.
Even though these assumptions and estimates are based on the best estimates of the Group’s
management, the aciual results might differ from them.

Judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial staternents and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

Held-to-maturity financial assets. Management applies judgement in assessing whether financial
assets can be categorized as held-to-maturity, in particular its intention and ability to hold the assets to
maturity. i the Group fails io keep these investments to maturity other than for certain specific
circumstances — for example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity - it will be required to
reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale. The invesiments would therefore be measured at fair
value rather than armortized cost,

Impairment of available for-sale equity investments. The Group determines that available-for-sale
equity investrments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below its cost. The determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgement.
Impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the
investee, industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and operational or financing cash
flows. Had all the declines in fair value below cost been considered significant or prolonged, the Group
would not suffer any additional loss, being the transfer of the total debit balance in the revaluation
reserve to profit or loss.

Deferred income tax asset recognition. Deferred income tax assets are recorded to the extent that
realization of the related tax benefit is probable. The future taxable profits and the amount of tax
benefits that are probable in the future are based on medium term business plan prepared by
management and extrapolated results thereafter. The business plan is based on management
expectations that are believed {0 be reasonable under the circumstances.

(28)
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2 - Basis of presentation of financial statements (continued)
56 Convenience translation into English of financial statements originally issued in Turkish

The accounting principles described above (defined as Turkish Accounting Standards/Turkish
Financial Reporting Standards) differ from International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS") issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board with respect to the application of inflation accounting,
certain reclassifications and also for certain disclosures requirement of the POA/CMB. Accordingly, the
accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations in accordance with IFRS.

3 - Business Combinations

None {December 31, 2012 - None).

4 - Joint veniures

None (December 31, 2012 - None).

5 - Segment reporting

The main operations of the Grup is purchasing and selling of capital market instruments. As the
Group's shares are not publicly traded, therefore there is no separate segment reporting disclosed in
December 31, 2013 year-end financial statements,

6 - Cash and cash equivalenis
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Banks

- Demand Deposits 36.880.094 11.741.957
- Time Deposits 2.858.698.738 1.700.138.331
Receivables from reverse repurchase agreements 175.748 38.401
Investment funds 50.171.251 298.722

2.845.925.831 1.712.217.411

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, details of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Time deposits with maturity up to three months 2.858.698.738 1.700.138.331
Demand Deposits 34.100.320 4.808.107
Receivables from reverse repurchase agreements 175.748 38.401
Investment funds 50.171.251 298.722

2.943.146.057 1.705.283.561

Cash and cash equivalents belonging to the customers of the Company consist of demand deposit
amounting of TL 2.779.774 as of December 31, 2013 (December 31, 2012: TL 6.933.851 TL).
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(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

7 - Financial investmenis

Short term financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

December 31,2013 December 31, 2012

- Share certificates quoted to BIST 20.718.626 31.365.451
Available for sale financial asseils
- Private sector bonds and bills - -
- Share certificates - 202.963.997
- Goverment bonds and treasury bills 516.359 526.739
Held to maturity financial asseis
- Goverment bonds and treasury bills 36.102.585 28.775.334
Deposits with an original maturity more than three months - 63.004.412
57.337.570 326.635.933
Lang term financial assets
Held to maturily financial assets
- Goverment bonds and treasury bilis -
Avallable for sale financial assets
- Share certificates 31.713.607 12.489.795
- Goverment bonds and treasury bills - -
- Private sector bonds and bills - -
31.713.607 12.489.795
Total financial mvesimenis 89.051.177 339.125.728

Held-to-maturity financial investments, with the fair value of TL 31.274.269 TL and the carrying value
of TL 31.627.159 TL are held as collateral in the CBRT, BIST and Takas ve Saklama Bankas! A.S.
(“Takasbank”) as of December 31, 2013 (December 31,2012: held-to-maturity financial investments,
with the fair value TL 28.820.716 and the carrying value of TL 28.775.334)

Maturity distribution of held-to-maturity financial assets is as follows:

Up 10 3 months
3 months — 1 year

36.102.585

December 31,2013 December 31, 2012

28.775.334

36,102,585

28.775.334
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7 — Financial investment (continued)

Short term financial investments

December 31, 2013

Fair
Cost value  Carrying value
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Goverment bonds and treasury hills 534.636 516.359 516.359
- Share certificates quoted to BIST 27.274.561 20.718.626 20.718.626
Available-for-sale financial assets
- Private sector bonds and bills - - -
Held o maturity financial investments
- Government bonds and treasury bills 36.271.851 35.982.884 36.102.585
64.081.048 57.217.869 57.337.570
December 31, 2012
Cost Fair Value  Carrying value
Financial assets at fair value
through profit/loss
- Goverment bonds and treasury bills 533.053 528.739 526.739
- Share certificaies quoted {o BIST 26.731.503 31.365.451 31.365.451
Available-for-sale financial assets
- Share certificates 19.218.824 202.963.997 202.963.897
- Private sector bonds and bills - - -
Held to maturity financial investments
- Government bonds and treasury bills 28.020.725 28.820.716 28.775.334
74.504.105 263.676.903 263.631.521
Long term financial invesiments
December 31, 2013
Cost Fair value  Carrying value
Held-to-maturity financial investments
- Government bonds and treasury bills - - -
Available-for-sale financial asset
- Share certificates 21.921.517 31.713.607 31.713.607
- Government bonds and treasury bills - - -
- Private sector bonds and bills - - -
21.921.517 31.713.607 31.713.607
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7-Financial investments (continued)
December 31, 2012

Cost Fair vaiue  Carrying value
Held-to-maturity financial investments
- Government bonds and freasury bills - - -

Avallable-for-sale financial assets
- Share certificates 13.016.806 12.488.795 12.489.795
- Government bonds and treasury bills - - -
- Private sector bonds and bills

13.016.806 12.489.795 12.489.795

Movements of the held-to-maturity financial assets during the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012 are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2013 2012
January 1 28.775.334 40.782.675
Purchases during the period 85.371.851 46.700.000
Valuation increase/decrease {rediscount rate is included) 355.400 (407.341)
Disposals in the period (78.400.000) (58.300.000)
Becember 31 36.102.585 28.775.334

As of December 31, 2013, available-for-sale financial asseis subject io repurchase agreement is
amounting to Tl 109.405 (December 31, 2012 - None).

Details of share certificates, that are classified as shori- term available-for-sale financial assets are as
follows;

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Type Amount Shareholding Amount Shareholding
TL % TL %
CGuoted to stock exchange
Yap Kredi Sigorta A.S. - - 202.963.997 11,99

Details of share certificates, that are classified as long- term available-for-sale financial assets are as
follows;

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Type Armount Shareholding Amount Shareholding

TL % TL %
Not guoted to siock exchange
Takasbank 31.423.700 4,86 12.359.600 4,86
Yapi Kredi Azerbaycan Lid. 92.064 0,10 92.064 0,10
Yapi Kredi Emeklilik A.S. 26.432 0,04 26.432 0,04
Kog Kiltir Sanat ve Tanitim Hiz. Tic. A.S. 11.699 4,90 11.699 4,90
Borsa Istanbul 159.712 0,04 - -

31.713.607 12.489.795
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7 - Financial Investments (continued)

On July 12, 2013, in accordance with the share purchase agreement between Alianz SE and the
Sellers dated March 26, 2013, the shares of Yapi Kredi Sigorta A.$ which are owned by Yapi ve Kredi
Bankasi A.S., Yapi Kredi Yatinm Menkul Degerler A.S.and Yapi Kredi Faktoring A.S. (Sellers) with a
nominal amount TL 95.815.145,696 are transfered to Allianz SE.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group has 4,86% of the shares of Takasbank. The Group
has Tl. 20.405.000 shares with a nominal value of TL 20.405.000. The related equity interest has been
carried at TL 1,54 per share which is the last price announced by BIST in the balance sheet.

The above unquoted and unlisted available-for-sale equity investments whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

& ~ Assets held for sale
None ( December 31, 2012 - 38.415.407).

Within ithe context of the liquadition process of Yapi Kredi B Tipi Yatinm Ortakkdt A.S. which was
performed by Yapi ve Kredi Bankast A.S. (YKB), it was decided that the shares of other shareholders
sold to YKB with a call price set as TL 2,68 between July 23, 2013 and August 5, 2013 in accordance
with Communiqué of the CMB Series: IV, No: 44 “Communiqué on the Principles Regarding the
Collection of Corporation Shares through Takeover Bid” and the shares of the Company at YKBYO,
representing 44,97% of the Company with a nominal value of TL 14.133.181,44 sold to YKB for a
consideration of TL. 37.876.926,25. The transfer of the shares was completed as of July 23, 2013 and
the Company has no shares left in the capital of YKBYO after the share call.

9 — Short term trade pavables

BDecember 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Payables to stock exchange money market 2.207.914.384 1.654.819.548
Funds from repo transactions 1.276.367 -
Bark loans 314.124.753 30.000.642
Due 1o short selling transactions 3.150.000 -

2.526.465.504 1.684.820.190
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10 ~ Trade receivables and payables
Trade receivables:

Short term irade receivables

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Receivables from loan customers 117.927.208 142.4786.287
Receivables fromTakas Saklama Merkezi 51.181.937 2.769.294
Receivables from customers 47.458.870 35.170.638
Commission receivables 937.588 1.801.013
Doubtiul receivables 111.295 111.205
Frovision for doubtful receivables (111.295) (111.295)
Project receivables 2.492.433 750.278
Other short-term receivables - 1.591.446

219.998.046 184.558.956

The Group provides loans to customers for using in share certificate transactions. The Company has
quoted share ceriificates as collateral against loans given whose total market value amounts 1o TL

245.669.560 (Decemnber 31, 2012: 287.554.611 TL).
Trade payables:
Shorti term trade payables

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Payables to customers 91.311.063 40.806.870
Agent commissions payable 1.607.269 2.397.154
Expense accruals 118.870 382.559
Taxes and funds payables 308.199 337.187
Other trade payables (*) 818.628 39.924

94.164.029 44.063.694

{ As of December 31, 2013, other trade payables consists of invoices amounting to TL 742.259

of the Group’s subsidiary, Yapi Kredi Porifoy.

11 - Receivables and payabies from financial sector activities

Receivables and payables from financial activities consists of the the transactions of the consolidated

subsidiary.

Feceivables from financial sector activities

December 31, December 31,

2013 2012

Fund management fee receivables 2.630.739 2.475.027
Individual pensicn fund management receivables 1.029.914 1.369.357
Investment advisory receivables 1.136.058 833.244
Frivate portfolioc management fee receivables 3.638 53.626
Other 4220 43.754
4.804.569 4.775.008
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11 - Heceivables and payables from financial sector activities (continued)

Portfofio management fee receivable amounting to TL 3.660.653 managed by the subsidiary, consists
of management fee receivables from 41 (December 31, 2012: 40) investment funds and 19
(December 31, 2012: 16) pension funds, which were established according to the Capital Market Law

and related legal provisions.

Management fee receivables are recognized on accrual basis and collected every month.

12 — Other receivables and payables

Other receivables
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Collaterals from foreign operations 28.709.388 3.177.116
Collaterals from Takasbank 8.906.002 4.630.156
Deposits and collaterals given 1.190.967 660.111
Fund advances given 223.419 1.336.879
39.029.776 9.804.262

Gther payables
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Payables to parties other than suppliers or customers 6.285.840 2.517.687
Payables to marketable securities disposai fund 491.344 491.344
6.777.184 3.009.031

13 — Property and equipment

Furniture and Leasehold
December 31, 2013 Buildings Vehicles fixtures improvements Total
Net book value, January 1 3.699.812 866 1.081.704 489.186 5.271.568
Additions - - 748.258 192.645 940.903
Disposals - - - - -
Depreciaticn expense (170.127) (866) {367.400) {223.065) (761.458)
MNet book value, December 31 3.529.685 - 1.462.562 458.766 5.451.013
Cost 8.506.355 77.326 13.171.312 4.030.224 25.785.217
Accumulated depreciation (4.976.670) {77.328) (11.708.750) (3.571.458) (20.334.204)
Net book value, December 31 3.529.685 - 1.462.562 458.766 5.451.013
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Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 {Continued)
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13 - Property and eguipment {continued)

Furniture and Leasehold

December 31, 2012 Buildings Vehicles fixtures improvements Total
Net book value, January 1 3.869.940 7.858 1.031.420 857.383 5.766.601
Additions - - 470.243 49,523 519.766
Disposals - - (16.206) - {16.206)
Depreciation expense {170.128) (6.992) (403.753) {417.720) (998.593)
Net book value, December 31 3.692.812 866 1.081.704 489.186 5.271.568
Cost 8.506.355 77.327 13.729.426 5.077.912 27.381.020
Accumulated depreciation {4.808.543) (76.461) (12.647.722) (4.588.726) (22.119.452)
Net book value, December 31 3.698.812 866 1.081.704 489.186 5.271.568
14 — Intangible asseis

December 31, 2013
Met book value, January 1 1.053.828
Additions 546.794
Amortization {638.291)
Met book value, December 31 1.062.331
Cost 8.343.175
Accumulated amortization (8.280.844)
Net book value, December 31 1.062.331

December 31, 2012

Net book value, January 1 1.063.939
Additions 573.619
Amortization {583.730)
det book value, December 31 1.053.5828
Cost B.697.404
Accumulated amortization {7.643.576)
Net book value, December 31 1.053.828
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15 — Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Cther shori-term provisions

Legal provisions 1.062.049 1.088.502
Other provisions 320.000 -

1.382.049 1.088.502
i) Guarantees given

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Letters of guarantee 3.101.853.341 2.212.641.793

Letters of guarantee are given to BIST, CMB and to Takasbank for Stock Exchange Money Market
iransactions. Foreign currency denominated letters of guarantee amount 1o TL 418.352.165
(December 31, 2012: 416.260.617 TL).

i} Legal provisions

Several outstanding legal cases against the Group have been considered and provision amounting to
TL 1.062.049 based on the best estimates has been reflected to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2013 (December 31, 2012: 1.088.502 TL).

16. Derivative transactions

As of December 21, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the details of TL nominal amounts of derivative
transaction are as follows:

December 31, 2013 December 31,2012

LUshD EUR TL usD EUR

Forward transactions(buy) - 7.977.508 - - 110.229
Forward transactions(sell) - 7.645.379 - - 109.282
Swap transactions(buy) 22,493,731 2.685.748.708 - 841.640 26.812.250
Swap transactions(sell) 22644923  2.805.825.750 - 837.822 27.044.550
Futures transactions(buy) - - - - -
Futures transactions(sell) - - - - -
45,138.654 5.507.197.433 - 1.679.462 54.076.311

Beceivables from derivative fransactions

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Forward transactions 9.085 3.010
Swap transactions 6.088.005 -
6.107.090 3.010
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16. Derivative fransactions (continued)

Payables to derivative transactions

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Forward transactions 361.622 329.595
Swap transactions 137.165.943 1.343
137.527.565 330,938

17 - Provision for employee benefits

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Short-term provisions

Provision for personnel premiums 8.624.000 8.355.000

8.624.000 8.355.000

Long-ierm provisions

Provision for employment termination benefits 1.848.618 1.655.359
Provision for unused vacations 3.057.502 3.191.131
4.906.120 4.846.490

Provision for employment termination benefits

Under the Turkish Labour Law, the Company required to pay the employment termination benefits to
each employee who have completed one year of service at the Company when they retire (for women
58, for men 60) and when they are dismissed or called up for military services or die. Due to changes in
the Law on September 8, 1999, some sections regarding the temporary period related with the working
period before retirement have been removed. The indemnity is one monih’s salary for each working year
and is limited to TL 3.438,22 as of December 31, 2013 (December 31, 2012 - TL 3.129,25).

The liability is not funded as there is no funding requirement.

The provision has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the
Company arising from the retirement of employees.

TFRS requires actuarial valuation methods to be developed to estimate the Company's obligation under
defined benefit plans. Accordingly the following actuarial assumptions have been used in the calculation
of the total liability.

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Discount rate (%) 4,78 3,86
Turnover rate to estimate retirement prebability (%) (%) 95,53 94,28

{*}  The raie reflects the parent company’s rate.

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase in line with
inflation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the
anticipated effects of future inflation. The liability is revised two times in a year and in the year end
calculation, the effective amouni as of January 1, 2014 of TL 3.438,22 TL (January 1, 2013 - TL
3.129,25).
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17 - Provision for employee benefits (continued)

Movements in the provision for employment termination benefits as of December 31, 2013 and 2012

are as follows:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

January 1 1.655.359 1.218.661
Service cost 193.724 24.838
Interest cost 79.070 93.696
Provisions during the period 342,481 6834.210
Payments during the period (421.996) (316.046)
Decernber 31 1.848.618 1.655.359
18- Liabilities for employee benefits
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Taxes payable and liabilities 604.731 524.053
Social security premiums payables 406.395 432,394
1.011.126 956.447
18- Prepaid expenses
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Commissions for letters of guarantees 1.391.811 1.164.840
Prepaid expenses 1.236.356 743.977
2.628.167 1.908.817

20 — Other assets and liabilities

Qther current assets

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Due from personnel 2.558 200
Other 126.376 121
128.934 321
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20 — Other assets and liabilities (continued)

Cther shori-term liabilities
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Other taxes and funds payables 1.984.065 697.836
Blocked customer accounts 8951.431 759,616
Other expense accruals 1.5635.637 236.041

4.471.133 1.693.493
21 - Equity

Paid-in capital and adjustment differences

The paid-in capital of the Company is TL 98.918.083 (December 31,2012: TL 98.918.083) and
consists of 9.891.808.346 (December 31, 2012: 9.891.808.346) authorized shares with a nominal
value of kr 1 each.The Group has no preferred share as of December 31, 2013.

The shareholders and their shares in capital with historic values as of December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012 are as follows:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Shareholders T Share % TL Share %
Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.S. 98.895.466 99,98 98.895.466 99,98
Temel Ticaret ve Yatinm A.S. 20.951 0,02 20.951 0,02
Other 1.666 0,00 1.666 0,00

98.218.083 98.918.083
Adjustment to share capital §3.078.001 63.078.001
Total paid-in capital 161.996.084 161,996,084

“Adjustment to share capital” represents the difference between total restaterment effect of cash and
cash equivalent contributions to share capital due to the inflation adjustments and total amount before
the inflation adjustment. There is no use of the adjustment to share capital other than to be added to
the capital.

Hestricted reserves and previous years’ profitsflosses

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

First legal reserves 18.891.100 18.891.100
Second legal reserves 38.236.572 38.918.738
Special reserves!” 4.626.817 4.626.817
Total restricted reserves 61.754.489 62.436.655
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21 — Equity (continued)

As of December 31, 2012 special funds amounting to TL 4.626.817 accounted under the
shareholder's equity is the 75% of the profit realized from the sales of the building in 2010,

The Group performs dividend distribution in accordance with the Communiqué on Dividends I-19.1 of
the Capital Market Board effective as of February 1, 2014,

In accordance with the Communiqué on Dividends {l-19.1 of the Capital Market Board effective as of
February 1, 2014, the dividend distribution rate for non-listed companies may not be less than twenty
percent of the net distributable profit for the period including donations. In accordance with the same
communigué, non-listed companies are required to distribute the profit share in whole and in cash; and
they cannot benefit from the practice of profit distribution by installments, which is granted to listed
companies,

tn accordance with the provisions of the said communiqué, non-listed companies may choose not to
distribute dividends in the event that the calculated profit share is less than five percent of the capital
stock in the most recent annual financial statements o be presented to the general assembly or in the
event that the net distributable profit for the period is less than TL 100.000 according to these financial
statements. In this case, the undistributed dividends are distributed in subsequent periods,

Changes in the minority interest during the period are as follows:

December 31,2013 December 31, 2012

Beginning of the period 8.198.408 9.5816.830
Minority interest decrease due to dividend payment {4.880.210) (4.626.911)
Minority interest net income 2.967.488 3.008.489
End of the period 6.285.686 8.198.408

Distribution of mincrity interest net income is as follows:

Minority interest income from continuing operations 2.967.488 3.008.489

2.967.488 3.008.489

22 — Tax assets and liabilities

Corporaie Tax
December 31,2013 December 31, 2012

Corporate taxes payable 52.665.237 10.037.970
Less: prepaid taxes (33.953.193) {15.581.679)
Taxes payable-net 18.712.044 (5.543.709)
Current tax expenses 52.561.866 7.200.475
Deferred tax income/{expense) (28.400.779) {1.656.766)

Total tax expense 24.161.,087 5.543.709
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22 — Tax assets and liabilities (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Deferred tax assets 29.391.558 385.061
Deferred tax liabilities - (8.525.140)
Deferred tax (labilities) / assets -~ net 29,391.558 (8.140.079)

Reconciliation of current year {ax expense and calculated theoretical tax expense with statutory tax
rate by the Company:;

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Net profit before taxes 233.625.091 82.610.457
Theoretical tax expense with 20% tax rate {58.725.018) (16.522.091)
Non-deductible expenses (514.022) 246.754
Non taxable income 42.119.301 {294.077)
Other (7.041.348) 2.601.452
Current year fax expense (24.161.087) (13.967.962)

The Corporate Tax Law was altered by Law No.5520 on June 21, 2006 and published in the Official
Gazetie No.26205. The majority of regulations in Corporate Tax Law No0.5520 became effective as of
January 1, 2008. According to this Law, the corporation tax rate of the fiscal year 2013 is 20% (2012;
20%}. Corporation tax is payable at a rate of 20% on the total income of the Company after adjusting
for ceriain disallowable expenses, corporate income tax exemptions (pariicipation exemption,
investment allowance, efc) and corporate income tax deductions {e.g. research and development
expenditures deductions). No further tax is payable unless the profit is distributed (except withholding
tax at the rate of 19.8% on the investment incentive allowance amount utilized within the scope of the
Income Tax Law transitional ariicle 61).

Dividends paid to non-resident corporations, which have a place of business in Turkey, or resident
corporations are not subject o withholding tax. Otherwise, dividends paid are subject to withholding
fax at the rate of 10% in accordance with 94th article of Income Tax Law. Addition of profit to share
capital is not considered a profit distribution.

Corporations are required to pay advance corporation tax quarerly at the rate of 20% on their
corporate income. Advance tax is declared by the 14th and is payable by the 17th of the second
month following each calendar quarter end. Advance tax paid by corporations is credited against the
annual corporation tax liability. The balance of the advance tax paid may be refunded or used to set
off against other liabilities to the government.

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies
file their tax returns by the 25th of the fourth month following the close of the financial year to which
they refate,

Tax returns are open for 5 years from the beginning of the year that follows the date of filing during
which time the tax authorities have the right fo audit tax returns, and the related accounting records on
which they are based, and may issue re-assessments based on their findings.
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22 - Tax assets and liabilities (continued)

Under the Turkish taxation system, tax losses can be carried forward o be offset against future
taxable income for up to 5 vears. Tax losses cannot be carried back to ofiset profits from previous

periods.

There are numerous exemptions in Corporate Tax Law concerning corporations. Accordingly, earnings
of the above mentioned nature, which are in the commercial profit/loss figures, have been taken into
account in the calculation of corporate tax.

In addition to exemptions explained above, tax deductions specified in Corporation Tax Law ariicles 8,
9, 10, and Income Tax Law article 40, are also considered in the assessment of the corporation tax

base.

Deferred tax asseis and liabilities based upon temporary differences are as follows:

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Cumulative Peferred tax Cumulative Deferred tax
temporary assets/ temporary assets /
differences (liabilities) differences (liahilities))
Valuation differences in financial asseis 6.480.935 1.296.187 43.507 8.701
lmpairment provision for
property and equipment 2.520.243 504.050 2.520.242 504.049
Provision for unused vacations 3.057.502 611.500 3.191.131% 638.226
Provision for employment termination
benefits 1.848.618 369.724 1.655.359 331.072
Provision for personnel premium 2.189.600 437.920 770.500 154.100
Legal cases provision 1.062.048 212.410 1.088.502 217.700
Derivatives 137.527.565 27.505.513 327.928 65.586
Other 186.590 37.318 1.087.459 217.492
Deferred tax assets 30.974.622 2.136.926
Financial assets fair value increase - - 183.213.655 9.160.683
MNet diffirence between the 1ax base and
carrying amount of
property and equipment 1.047.697 209.540 909.454 181.892
Valuation differences in financial asseis 662,981 132.526 4.633.949 026.789
Derivatives 6.107.090 1.221.418 3.010 602
Other 97.549 19.510 35.195 7.039
Deferred tax liabilities 1.583.064 10.277.005
Deferred tax {iabilities) / assets, net 29,391,558 {8.140.079)

(43)
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22 — Tax assets and Habilities {continued)

Starting from January 1, 2006 the treatment of tax exemption of capital gains from sales of property
and participations as per the new Corporate Tax Law numbered 5520 and old Corporate Tax Law
numbered 5422 was amended. According to the amendment, 75% of the gains from sales of property
and shares of participation are exempted from corporate tax for property and shares that were held for
at lsast two full years in the company's financial statements. However, for the exemption to be utilized,
the exempted amounts should be accounied under a special fund account in liabilities for a period for
5 years. The remaining portion is subject to corporate tax.

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Beginning deferred tax assets / (liabilitiss), net {8.140.079) {161.164)

Deferred tax income / (expense 28.400.779 {3.884.618)

Deferred tax (expense) / income netted in revaluation fund 9.130.858 {4.094.297)

Deferred tax (Habilities) / assets at period end, net 29,391.558 (8.140.079)
23 — Hevenue and cost of sales

December 31, December 31,

2013 2012

Revenue

Treasury bills and government bonds sales
Share certificates sales

Commissions on intermediary activities on
share certificates

Fund management fees

Intermediary commissions on futures market
Outright purchase-sale transactions
intermediary commissions

Repo intermediary commissions

Custody commissions

Consultancy services

Cther service revenues

Other intermediary commissions

Corporate finance revenues

Total revenue

2.982.611.599
10.292.637.412

45.399.477
3.562.831
7.822.068

127.395
342.978
1.062.671
466.144
3.711.472
7.232.189

15.226.787
13.370.203.024

2.619.834.861
8.198.340.413

39.201.972
3.5633.036
6.603.125

492.040
544,078
916.544

2.134.165
3.361.495

4,295.172
10.879.256.901

Service income discounts and allowances

Commissions paid to agencies 24.238.198 22.335.078
Commission returns 815.982 738.988
Total discounts and allowances 25.054.180 23.074.066

Revenue

13.345.148.844

10.856.182.835

Cost of sales

Costs of treasury bills and government bond sales

Costs of share certificate sales

2.992.462.214
10.291.423.406

2.619.153.777
8.196.352.947

Total cost of sales

13.283.885.620

10.815.506.724

Gross operating profit

61.263.224

40.676.111
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24 — Hevenue and cost of financial activities

December 31, 2013 December 31,2012

Revenue from financial activities

Investment funds management fee 29.824.682 23.744.219
Individual pension funds managemeni fee 10.273.842 12.653.801
Fund management fee 40,098,524 36.398.020
Discretionary porifolio management commission 4,194.400 3.011.428
Portfolio achievement premiums 874.600 1.200.253
Discretionary porifolio management income 5.169.000 4.211.681
Investment consuliancy revenues 1.295.971 944,444
Other revenues from financial activities 1.295.971 944.444
Financial activities revenue 46.563.495 41.554.,145
Financial activities revenue

Comrnission expenseé {2.808.523) (1.784.029)
Fund managemeni commission expense (497.260) -
Financial activities cost (3.305.783) {1.784.029)
Gross profit/(loss) from financial sector activities 43.257.712 39.770.116
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25- Gieneral adminisirative expenses

December 31,

December 31,

2013 2012
Personnel expenses 46.784.477 34.628.525
Duties, taxes and levies 2.826.969 2.523.605
Information services expenses 3.405.401 2.496.577
Data processing expenses 2.471.964 1.987.948
Data processing expenses (Note 13,14) 1.399.749 1.582.323
Communication expenses 1.529.422 1.489.861
Audit and advisory expenses 1.018.267 B896.542
Rent expenses 901.110 761.577
Vehicle expenses 639.215 566.973
Membership and subscription fees 819.724 553.597
Insurance expenses 420.684 405.714
Maintenance sarvice expenses 341.486 362.000
Representation expenses 430.667 298.325
Cleaning expenses 325.160 241.683
Stationary expenses 304.483 224773
Meeting and traveiling expenses 645.286 198,747
Other 3.378.389 3.085.520
67.742.153 52.315.290

Marketing, sales and distribution expenses:
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Brokerage and operation fees 3.301.407 2.504.182
Custody commissions 949.798 909.295
Advertisement expenses 942,458 562.927
5.193.663 3.976.404
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26~ Other income from operating activities

December 31, December 31,

2013 2012
Interest income on deposit at banks 97.909.589 88.368.008
Dividend income 1.208.503 10.105.641
Foreign Exchange gains 136.408.216 -
Interest income on loans 14.601.581 17.705.814
Income due o derivative operations 84.451.418 86.038.216
Interest income on treasury bills and government bonds 2.208.882 4.136.292
Futures trading income 3.552.694 -
Valuation differences on assets held for sale - 1.100.523
Incorne from sale of subsidiary and available for sale :
securities (*) 233.230.458 -
Interest income on share certificates - 4.633.949

Other interest income 806.681 533.575
Qther income 2.054.223
576.432.245

212.622.018

] Income from sale of subsidiary and available for sale securities consists of income from the sale
of Yapi Kredi Sigorta A.S to Allianz SE amounting to TL 208.769.533 and income from the
share transier of YKBYO to YKB amounting to TL 24.460.924.

27 - Other expense from operating activities

December 31, December 31,

2013 2012
Interest expense 153.154.710 125.827.987
Derivative loss 137.527.565 1.294.204
Foreign Exchange loss - 16.143.773
Commissions paid for guarantee letters 9.836.940 7.067.637
Impairment of financial investrments 8.104.137 -
Commission expenses 2.606.568 944,855
Banking and insurance transactions tax expense 1.431.786 1.173.301
on money market transactions
Legal cases and other provision expenses 293.547 138.049
Other expenses 1.437.021 1.576.288
314.392.274 154.166.094
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28 — Helated pariy explanations
Bank deposits in related parties

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.S. - shareholder 2.300.901.999 378.604.948
Yap! Kredi Nederland N.V. - other related party 1.517.264 1.447.210
2.302.419.263 380.052.158

The customer deposits that are deposited in Yap: ve Kredi Bankasi A.S are amounting to TL

2.779.774 (December 31, 2012: TL 5.680.314).

Cash and cash equivalenis in related parties

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Yapi ve Kredi Bankast A.S. B Tipi Likit Fon- other related party 50.171.251 298.722
50.171.251 298.722
Heceivables from related parties
Commission and portfolio management fee receivables
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.$. Investment funds - other related party 3.766.797 2.475.027
Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.S. - shareholder 439.429 36.514
Yapi Kredi Emeklilik A.S. Pension funds - other related party 1.029.914 1.403.753
Yapi Kredi B tipi Yatinm Ortakhig: - -
Yapt Kredi Yatinm Menkul Degerler A.S.
Investment funds- other related party - -
Other - other related party - -
5.236.140 3.915.294
Due to related parties
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Trade Payables
Yapi ve Kredi Bankas) A.S.- sharehaclder 1.964.073 3.365.971
1.964,073 3.365.971
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28 - Related party explanations {continued)

Financial and other payables

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Yapi ve Kredi Bankas| A.S. - shareholder 1.535.637 -
Yapt Kredi Sigorta AS - 217.797
Zer Merkezi Hizmetler ve Ticaref A.S. 267.661 4119
Yapi Kredi Emeklilik 79.045 -
Setur Servis Turistik A.$. — other related party 1.937 -
Opet Petrolclltk A.S. — other related party 4.529 1.500
Oto Kog — other related party - 12.776
Kog Holding A.S. - other related party 5.782 -
YKS Tesis Yonetimi Hizmetleri AS— other related party 44.382 -
Other 67 -

1.939.040 236.192

Operating income from related parties

December 31,

December 31,

2013 2012
Yapi ve Kredi Bankast A.S. Yatirin Fonlari- other related party 27.439.460 20.995.371
Yapi ve Kredi Bankast A.S.- shareholder - 1.644.208
Yapi Kredi Yatinm Menkul Dederler A.S.Yatirim Fonlari- other related
party 3.463.196 12.741.042
Yapi Kredi Emekdilik A.S. Emeklilik Fonlari- other related party 10.206.604 3.538.030
Yap! Kredi Emekiilik A.S. OPY Management fee 215,275 -
Yapi Kredi B Tipi Yatirm Ortakligi A.S. 186.058 815.929
Yapi Kredi Sigorta A.$. OPY Management fee 65.652 100.001
Kog Holding A.S. - other related party 8.815 31.584
Ford Otosan Otomotiv San. A.S. - other related party 8.815 24.084
Trkiye Petrol Rafinerileri A.S. — other related party 8.815 24.084
Aygaz A.3. — other related party 8.815 9.084
Tark Traktor A.3. — other related party 8.815 19.084
Tofas Turk Otomobil Fabrikalart A.S. ~ other related party 8.815 16.584
Arcelik A.S. — other related party 8.815 16.584
Otokar Otobils Karoseri A.S. — other related party 8.815 14.084
Yapi Kredi Emeklilik A.S. - other related party 26.501 -
Tat Konserve ve Sanayi A.$. — other related party 8.815 9.084
Marmaris Altinyunus Turisttk Tesisleri A.$. — other related party 8.815 9.084
Others— other related party 467.632 383.191
42.158.528 40.391.112

Other income from related parties

interest income

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Yap! ve Kredi Bankast A.S. — shareholder 47.272.980 64.715.385
Yapi Kredi Nederland N.V. — other related party 141.554 475.314
47.414,534 65.190.699
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28 — Helated party explanations (continued)

Service sharing income
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Tasfiye Halinde Yapi Kredi Yatinm Ortakhd - associate 54.144 34.414

54.144 34.414

Hent income
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Tasfiye Halinde Yapt Kredi Yatinm Oriaklig: - associate 34.193 32.414
34.193 32.414

Cperation expenses paid io related parties December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Yapt Kredi Sigorta A.S. 231.068 1.006.986
Zer Merkezi Hizmetler ve Tic. A.$. - other related party 801.156 778.944
Kog Sistemn Bilgi ve lletisim Hizm. A.S. - other related party 308.050 169.708
Setur Servis Turistik A.S. — other related party 378.445 226.2286
Qiokog Otomotiv Tic. ve San. A.$. — other related party 206.599 195,617
Avis AS — other related parly 148.966 159.197
Opet Petrolelliik A.$. — other related party 147.988 119.572
Koc Holding A.$. — other relaied party 160.374 64.782
Unicredit Menkul Degerler A.S, 259.142 -
YKS Tesis Yonetimi 484.221 596.204
Other 1.823 137.572
3.207.832 3.454.808

Commission paid to related parties
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Yapi ve Kredi Bankast A.S.-shareholder 24.162.155 21.767.753
Yapit Kredi Emeldilik 79.045 -
24.241.200 21.767.753

Financial expenses paid to related pariies
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Yap! ve Kredi Bankas| A.8.- shareholder 289.957 68.638

289.957 68.638

Benefits provided to key management
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Benefits provided to key management 4.684.420 2.955.058

4.684.420 2.955.058
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 (Continued)
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28 ~ Helated party explanations (continued)

Dividend income
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Yap! Kredi Sigorta A.S. - associate - 8.630.337
Takasbank - 1.347.771
Yapi Kredi Emeldilik A.S. - associate - 13.042
Tasfiye Halinde Yapt Kredi Yatirim Ortaklig 664.910 -
Yapi Kredi Azerbaycan - 18.854

664.910 10.010.004

29 - Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments

The Group is subject to risks as a result of its commercial activities. The details and management of
these risks are explained below. The Group management is fully responsible for the management of
financial risk.

a. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to meet the terms of their
agreements as foreseen and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

For the loans provided, a default risk that the counterparty will not be able to fulfill the liabilities
associated with the loan is present. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring
credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties, and continually assessing
the creditworthiness of counterparties. The Company also manages credit risk by keeping
equity shares obtained from loan customers as collateral. Credit risk is fully concentrated in
Turkey where the Company mainly operates.

Limits of new credits and additional credit limits are bound by the limits approved by Credit
Committee and Board of Directors. Limits to be provided to customers are initially proposed by
the Credit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.

The Company makes a regular collateral/equity check for credit transactions where the current
equity and benchmark equity is compared. If the collateral amount falls below the benchmark
amount, additional collateral is requested from the customer.

The common stocks which the customers would like to buy using credit are bound to be in the
‘Marketable Securities Accepted for Credit Purchase” list. The items 1o be included in this list
are determined by considering factors like transaction volume, changes in transaction volume,
free float rate, liquidity and amount of shares in circulation. The common stocks in the
customer's porifolio are accepted as collateral if the customer would like to buy common stocks
other than the stocks listed in “Marketable Securities Accepted for Credit Purchase”.

The share of the receivables from the biggest 10 credit customers in the total receivables from
credit customers of the Company is 64% (December 31, 2012: 67%).

The table below shows credit risk exposure based on financial instruments as of December 31,

2013 and 2012. In the determination of the maximum amount of credit risk exposure, in addition
to the collaterals received, factors that lead to credit enhancement are not taken into account.

(61)
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Yapi Kredi Yatirim Menkul Degerler A.$. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 (Continued)

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

28 ~ Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

b. Irformation on market risk

Interest rate risk

The need of Company’s dealing ways with interest risk rate arises from effects of interest rates
changes on the financial instruments. The sensitivity of the Group to interest rate risk is related with
maturity mismaich of assets and liabilities. This risk is managed through corresponding assets that
are sensitive to interest rates with similar liabilities.

On the balance sheet of the Group, available for sale and variable interest rate held to maturity
financial assets are subject to price risk due to changes in interest rates. Also, the Company is subject
to reinvestment rate risk when the cash resulting from the redemption of fixed interest held to maturity

investment securities are reinvested.

The table below shows the interest rate position details and sensitivity analysis as of December 31,
2013 and 2012:

Interest Rate Position Table

Financial instruments with fixed interest rates December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Financial assets

Financial assets held to maturity * 36.102.585 28.775.334
Financial assets available for sale ** - -
Banks 2.945.925.831 1.775.221.823
Receivables from reverse repo transactions 175.748 38.401

Finaneial liabilities

Funds generated from repo transactions 1.166.961 -
Financial leasing payables -
Funds generated from Takasbank Money Market 2.207.914.384 1.654.819.548
Bank loans 314.124.753 30.000.642

Financial insiruments wiith variable interest rate

Financial assets
Financial assets held to maturity * - -

(") Financial assets that bear an interest rate and are classified as held to maturity.
(™ Financial assets that bear an interest rate and are classified as available for sale.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, whete all other variables are kept as constant the effects of a 5%
increase/{decrease) in TL interest rates on interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities other than
receivables from credit customers carrying amount, revaluation funds, net income for the period and
equity are presented below. Financial liabilities and held to maturity investments with fixed interest
rates are assumed to be insensitive to changes in interest rates. Reinvestment risk arises when the
cash generated due to redemption of fixed interest held to maturity investment securities is
reinvested. As of December 31, 2013, the Group has no financial assets with variable interest rate.
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Yapi Kredi Yatirim Menkul Degerler A.S. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 (Continued)
{(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

29 — Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, average interest rates of financial instruments:

2013 2012

TL (%) EUR (%) TL (%) USD (%)
Assels
Cash and cash equivalenis - 3,04 8,15 3,90
Available for sale financial assets 7,15 “ 7,15 -
Held to maturity financial assets 8,82 - 7,00 -
Credits originated by the Company 9,63 - 11,50 -
Liabilifies
Payables to Stock Exchange Money Market 9,92 - 6,80 -
Bank loans - -

Funds generated from repo transactions

9,42

6,00

The Group's assets and liabilities are grouped based on their repricing maturities as follows as of

December 31, 2013 and 2012:

December 31, 2013

Up to Upto 3 months 1year Non-interest
1month 3 months to 1 year to 5 years bearing Total
Cash and cash eqguivalents 2.544.682.894 364.362.843 - “ 36.880.004 2.945.925.831
Financial investments - 516.359 36.102.585 - 52.432.233 89.051.177
Trade receivables 117.927.208 - - - 102.070.838  219.908.046
Derivative financial assets held for trading - - - - 6.107.090 6.107.090
Gther receivables - - - - 46.462.512 46.462.512
Other current assets . - - 128.934 128.934
Property and equipment - - - - 5.451.013 5.451.013
Intangible assets - - - - 1.062.331 1.062.331
Deferred tax asset - - - - 209.391.558 29.391.558
2.662,610.102 364.879.202 36.102.585 - 279.986.603 3.343.578.492
Financial kabilities 2.526.465,504 - - - - 2.526.465.504
Trade payables - . - - 94.164.029 94.164.029
Derivative fiabilities held for trading - - - 137.527.565 137.527.565
Cther payables . - “ 8.777.184 6.777.184
Current income taxes payable - - - - 18.712.044 18.712.044
Provisions - - - 11.017.175 11.017.175
Other current liabilities “ - - 4.471.133 4.471.133
Provisions for employee benefits - - - - 4.906.120 4.906.120
2.526.465.504 - - - 277.575.250 2.804.040.754
136.144.598 364.879.202 36.102.585 - 2.411.353 539.537.738

(54)
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26 — Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

December 31, 2012

TUpto Upto 3 months 1 year Non-interest

1 month 3 months to 1 year to 5 years bearing Total

Cash and cash equivalents 1.207.136.457 340.334.152 63.004.411 - 11.742.381 1.712.217.411
Financial investmenis 22.093.002 ©3.004.412 6.682.440 526.739 246.819.135 338.125.728
Trade receivables 142.476.287 - - - 42.082.669 184.55B.956
Derivative financial assets held for trading - - - - 3.010 3.010
Other receivables - - - - 16.488.087 16.488.087
Other current assets - - - - 321 321
Assets Held for Sale - - - - 38.415.407 38.415.407
Property and equipment - - - - 5.271.568 5.271.568
Intangible assets - - . - 1.053.828 1.053.828
Current tax asset - - - - 7.200.475 7.200.475
Deferred tax asset - - - - 385.061 385.061
1.461.705,746 403,338,564 69,686.851 526,739 369.461.952 2.304.719.852

Financial fiabilities 1.580.683.837 94.136.353 - - - 1.684.820.190
Trage payables - - - - 44.063.694 44.063.694
Derivative fabilities held for trading “ - - - 330.938 330,938
Other payables - - - - 3.008.031 3.009.031
Current income faxes payable - - - - 1.656.766 1.656.766
Provisions - - - - 10.399.949 10.389.949
Other current liabilities - - - - 1.693.493 1.693.493
Provisions for employee benefits - - - . 4.846.480 4.846.490
Deferred tax liability - - - - 8.525.140 8.525.140
1.590.683.837  94.136.353 - - 74.525.501 1.759.345.691

(128.978.091) 309.202.211 69.686.851 526,739 294.836,45% 545.374.161
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Yap Kredi Yatirun Menkul Degerler A.$. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 (Continued)
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

28 — Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

Off-balance sheet liabilities in foreign currencies consist of letter of guarantees and derivative

transactions (Note 13).

According to the analyses of the Group’s sensitivity where, all other variables are kept as constant,
the effects of a 10% increase/decrease in the carrying value of common stocks, revaluation fund, net

income for the period and equity are as follows:

Exchange Rate Sensitivity Analysis Table

ProfifLoss Equity
Depreciation of Appreciation of [epreciation of Appreciation of
December 31, 2013 foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency
In case of a 10% change in USD exchange rates:
USD net asse/liability (2.519.560) 2.519.560
effect - .
In case of a 10% change in EURO exchange rales:
EURO net asset/liability (281.047.737) 281.047.737
effect - -
In case of a 10% change in other exchange rates:
Other foreign currency net effect (6.810) 6.810 -
Total {283.574.107) 283.574.107
Exchange Rate Sensitivity Analysis Table
Profitloss Equity
Degpreciation of Appreciation of Depreciation of Appreciation of
December 31, 2012 forgign curency foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency

in case of a 10% change in USD exchange rates:
USD net asset/liabitity
effect {(214.055) 214.055
Inn case of & 10% change in EURO exchange rates:
EURO net assetliability

effect (2.724.813) 2.724.813 - -
in case of a 10% change in other exchange rates:
Gther foreign currency net effect (3.427) 3.427 - -
Total {2.942.295) 2.942.295
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Motes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 (Continued)
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28 — Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

b. Common stock price risk

Majority of the equity shares classified in the balance sheet of the Group at fair value through profit or
loss and available for sale financial assets are traded on BIST. According to the analyses of the
Company where, all other variables are kept as constant, the effects of a 10% increase/decrease in
the carrying value of common stocks, revaluation fund, net income for the period and equity are as

follows:

December 31, 2013

Batance sheet item Rate of Change Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
change direction  carrying value  revaluation fund net income equity
Common stocks
Financiat assets increase - - - -
availabie for sale 10% Decrease - - -
Financial assels at a
fair value through profitioss Increase 2.071.863 2.071.863 -
Financial assets 10% Decrease (2.071.863) - 2.071.863 -
December 31, 2012
Balance sheet item Rate of Change Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
change direction  carrying value  revaluation fund net income equity
Common stocks
Financial assets Increase 21.545.379 21.545.379 - 21.545.379
available for sale %10 Decrease {21.545.379) (21.545.379) - (21.545,379)
Financial assats at a
Fair value through profitioss Increase 3.189.218 - 3.188.219 -
Financial assats %10 Decrease {3.189.219) (3.189.219) -
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28 — Mature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)
c. Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the possibility that the Group is unable to meet its net funding commitments and
is defined as the risk of loss as a result of not being able to close positions at all or at an
appropriaie price because of barriers in the market.Liquidity risk stems from deterioration in
markets or cccurrence of events resulting in diminution of fund resources such as fall of credit
ratings. The management of the Group controls liquidity risk by allocating fund resources and
keeping a sufficient level of cash and cash equivalents to meet its existing and possible

obligations.
December 31, 2013
Carrying Up to 1 month to 1 year to Total of contractual
value 1 month 1 year 5 years cash outflows
Financial liabilities 2.518.426.366 2.518.426.366 - - 2.526.465
Trade payables 94.314.029 94.314.029 - - 94.314.029
Other payables 6.777.184 6.777.184 - - 6.777.184
December 31, 2012
Carrying Up to 1 month to 1 yearto Total of contractual
value 1 month 1 year 5 years cash outflows
Financial liabilities 1.684.820.190 1.508.190.309 181.891.499 - 1.690.081.808
Trade payables 44,063,694 44.063.694 . . 44.063.694
Other payables 3.008.031 3.009.031 - - 3.009.031

30. Financial instruments
Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Group using available
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, judgement is necessarily
required to interpret market data to estimate the fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented
herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could realize in a current market
exchange.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of the financial
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate fair value:

i Financial assets:
The fair values of financial assets carried at cost, including cash and cash equivalents and
other financial assets, are considered to approximate their respective carrying values due to
their short-term nature and their insignificant credit risk.

Market prices are used on the determination of the fair values of government bonds and
common stocks.

Financial invesiments’ costs, fair value and carrying values are disclosed in Note 7.
(59)
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Motes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 (Continued)
{(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") uniess otherwise indicated.)

30. Financial nstruments (continued)

i, Financial liabilities:

The fair values of monetary liabilities are considered to approximate their respective carrying
values due to their short-term nature.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

s Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

® Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, either directly or indirectly,

° Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
that are not based on observahle market data.

Financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value:

December 31, 2013

Level1l

Level 2

Level 3

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profivloss

Share ceriificates trading on BIST

Public sector bonds, notes and bills

Available for sale financial assetls
Share certificates

Public secior boncds, notes and bifls
Privaie sector bonds and bills

Derjvative receivables held for trading
Derivative liabilities held for trading

20.718.626

20.718.626

516.359

516.359

31.713.605
31.713.605

6.107.090
137.527.565

December 31, 2012

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profitfloss

Share certificates trading on BIST

Goverment bonds and freasury bills

Available for sale financial asseis
Share ceriificates

Public sector bonds, notes and bills
Private sector bonds and bills

Derivative receivables held for trading
Perivative liabilities held for trading

526,739
31.365.451

203.094.192

12.359.600

3.010
330.838

(60)
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31 - Other explanations on operations and other matters
a. Explanation on portfelio management operations:

At December 31, the Company managed 40 mutual funds and 19 pension funds {December, 31
2012 - 40 mutual funds and 16 pension funds) In accordance with the Funds'® statute, the Group
purchases and sells securities and share certificates for the Funds, markets their participation
certificates and provides other services and charges daily management fees. At December 31,
2013 the Group earned a management fee of TL 39.601.264 (December,31 2012 — 36.398.020
TL).

vesiment funds which investiment period started between the dates January 1, 2013 and
December 31, 2013;

Investment period

Fund Name start date
Yam Kredi Bankas! B Tipi %100 Anapara Garantili 33. Alt Fon (APG36) 22.02.2013
Yap: Kredi Bankast B Tipi %100 Anapara Garantili 34. Alt Fon (APG37) 22.02.2013
Yapt Kredi Bankast B Tipi %100 Anapara Garantili 35, Alt Fon (APG38) 31.05.2013
Societé dinvestissement a capital variable (SICAV) 07.05.2013
Yap: Kredi Bankasi B Tipi Semsiye Fonu'na Baglh Ulikemn Igin Blyiime Amagli Degisken Alt Fonu 02.07.2013
Ya Kredi Bankas! B Tipi %100 Anapara Garantili 36. Alt Fon (APG39) 15.11.2013
Yap: Kredi Bankas: B Tipi %100 Anapara Garantili 37. Alt Fon (APG40) 29.11.2013

investment funds which investment period ended between the dates January 1, 2013 and
Becember 31, 2013;

Investment

period start
Fund Name date
Yap: Kredi Bankas! B Tipl %100 Anapara Garantifi 25. Alt Fon (APG28) 20.02.2013
Yap Kredi Bankasi B Tipi %100 Anapara Garantlli 26. Alt Fon (APG29) 20.02.2013
Yap: Kredi Bankas! B Tipi %100 Anapara Garantili 28. Alt Fon (APG31) 20.02.2013
Yap: Kredi Bankas! B Tipi %100 Anapara Garantili 29. Alt Fon (APG32) 20.02.2013
Yap: Kredi Bankas! B Tipi %100 Anapara Garantili 30. Alt Fon (APG38) 15.05.2013
Yapt Kredi Bankasi B Tipi %100 Anapara Garantili 31. Alt Fon (APG34) 26.06.2013
Yap: Kredi Bankas| B Tipl %100 Anapara Garantifi 32, Alt Fon (APG35) 13.11.2013

Pension funds which invesiment period started beiween the dates January 1, 2013 and
December 31, 2013

Investment

period start
Fund Name date
Yapt Kredi Emeklililk Katki Emeklilik Yatinm Fonu 30.04.2013
Yapt Kredi Emeklilik Altin Emeklilik Yatinm Fonu 02.05.2013
Yapi Kredi Emeklilik Standart Emeldilik Yatinm Fonu 02.05.2013
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31. Other explanaiions on operations and other matters (continued)

The details of daily management fee commission rates and net assets values for each fund are as
follows:
Commission Total Fund
rates Value
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2013 2012 2013 2012
Thousand Theusand
Fund Name % % T L
investment Funds
Yam ve Kredi Bankast A.S. B Tipi Semsiye Fonu'na Bagh Dagigken Alt Forus (2. Alt Fon) 0,007 0,007 102.321 128.473
Yapt Kredi Yatnm Menkul Dedorer AS. B Tipi Oze! Portidy Yinetimt Biyame Amach Dedlgken Fonu 0,00585 0,00555 24975 24837
Yap Kredi Yahnm Menkul Dedarer AS. B Tipi Semsive Foru'na Safh Uzun Vadel Tahvil ve Bono Alt Fonu (2. Alt
Fon) 0,00493 0,008 69.068 87.980
Yap v Kredi Bankas: A.S. A Tipl Semsiya Forw'na Bady Hisse Senadi Alt Fonu (2. Al Fon} o0 0,01 22,721 22.822
Yap ve Kredi Bankasi A.S. B Tipi Ddnya Fonlan Fon Seped Fonu 0,0014 0,0014 7.763 2857
Yap: ve Kredi Bankasi A.S. B Tipi Semsiye Fonu'na Bagh Bayiime Amach Dagighen Alt Fonu (8. All Fon) 0,007 0,007 59.637 46,760
Yaps ve Kigdi Bankas! A S. B Tipi Semsiya Feauna Badh Ora Vadsi Tahwi ve Bono Alt Fond (341 Fon) 0,00384 ©,006 116.209 165.788
vam ve Kredl Bankasi A5, A Tipt IMKB 100 Endeks! Fonu{Hisse Senedl Yogun) 0,006 0,006 18.157 15.833
o v Krod: Bankast A5 A Tipi Semsiye Foruna Bagy Karma Al Fon (3. Al Fon) 001 0,01 5.226 3670
Yap: va Rredi Bankast AS. AT Ozel Bankachik 1D 30 Endeksi Fonu {Hissa Senedi Yogun) 90,0028 0,0028 7.073 11,821
Yap wa Kredi Dankast AS. B Tipi Alhn Fong 06,0055 ©,0055 51.802 85.634
Yap: va Kredi Bankast AS B Tip Perdormans Odakl: Degighen Fon 0,007 0,007 70.688 45.633
Yap ve Kredi Bankast AS B Tipi Gok Uzun Vadeli Tahwil Bone Fon 0,007 0,007 18,602 28.895
Yagn va Kradi Bankasi A.S. A Tipi Semsiye Fonuna Bagh INKB Temetti Endaksi Al Fon (1.2l fon)(Hisse Senadi
Yogun) 0,406 0,006 24,881 16.747
Yap! va Kredi Bankas) A.S. B Tis Samsive Fon'a bagh Bayilere Yoneli Degisken Al Fon (7.All Fan) Fonu 0,0055 0,0085 705 239
Yam ve Kredi Bankast AS. B Tizd Semsiye Fon'a bagh Ozel Sekidr Odakh Dogisker: At Fon (8.Alt For} Fonu 0,005 0,005 182.407 117.925
Yap ve Kredi Bankast A.S. B Tipt Semsiya Fon'a bagh Emtla Fonlan Fon Sepetl Fonu (1.Alt Fon) 0,607 0,007 599 31
Yapi ve Kredi Bankas: A.S. B Tipi Semslye Fonu'nz Badh Ozel Bankacisk Oagisken Alt Fonu (4. Alt Fon) 0,0055 0,0055 16.251 31..52
Yap: vo Kredi Bankas: A5, B Tigi Semsiye Fonu'na Bagh Grel Bankachik Biydme Amagh Degigken Alt Fon (5, Alt
Fon) 0,0055 0,0055 83.025 34.019
Yapt ve Kredi Bankas: A.S B Tipt Tahwil Bono (Bureband) Foru 0,008 0,008 5771 14.050
Yap ve Kredi Bankasi A.$. [slanbul Serbest Yatinm Fonu 0,0055 0,0055 45958 8.001
Yap v Kredi Bankasi A.S. A Tipl Yabanci Menkul Kiytsetier Fonu 0,01 0,01 2660 1.238
Yap ve Krodi Bankast AS. 8 Tipl Likit Fon 0,00325 0,003 1.048.439 1.342.969
Yap: Krath Yatnm Menkul Dededer AS. B Tipi Semsiys Foou'na Sagh Oodisken Alt Fon (5. Al Fon) 0,003 6,003 1.580 38.230
Yapr Kredi Yatinm Menku! Degevier AS. B Tipi Semsiye Fomu'na Bagl Ozal Ponlby Yénetimi Degigken Alt Fonu (3.
Al Fon) .,005 0,008 130.055 254,175
Yaps Kiedk Yalnm keriui Dederer A.S. A Tipi Semsiye Fonwng Bagh Dagighen Alt Fon (1. Alt Fory) G008 0,61 18.010 13,620
Yatn Kradi Yaunm Menkul Degarer A.S. A Tipi Semsiye Fenu'na Bagh Kog Sirketled Istirak ARt Foru (3. Alt
Fom)(Hisse Senedl Yogun} 0,01 0,01 105.900 65.817
Yapu Kredi Yatmm Menkal Degeder A.S. B Tipl $emstye Feouna Bagh Kisa Vadali Tahvil ve Bono Ak Fonu {1.A1L
Fen) 0,00575 0,006 271.214 351,593
Ya Kredi Yatnm Menku! Defjarder AS A Tipi Semsiye Fony 'na bagh IMKE Ulusal 30 Endeksi Alt Fonu (4. Alt
Fon)(Hizse Senedi Yodun) 0,006 0,006 19.000 23.316
Yapi vo Krodi Bankas: A5, A Tipi Samsiye Fonuna bagh Agrest Hisse Seaedi Al Fond (4.All Fon) (Hisse Senedi
Yoiun Fon} 0,01 e 565 167
Yapi ve Kredi Bankast A.S. A Tipi Semsiye Fonu'na bajgh idea Moda! Poriidy Hisse Seaedi Alt Fonu {5.AlL
Fon) {Hissa Senedi Yojun Fon) } 0.01 0,01 17.167 2.140
Yam Krodi Yatam Menkul Dederter A.S, B Tipi Semsiva Foru'na Bagh Gzl Porttéy Yonetimi Perdfonmans Odaklt
Dadigken Alt Fonu [4.A1 Fon) 0,00055 0,00055 206,587 89.172
Yap: ve Krod Bankas A.S. B Tigt Semsiye Fonw'na bagh Kisa Vadel Tehvil ve Bono Alt Fonu (2.A1 Fon} 0,08575 0,006 2.711.328 2.151,541
Yap: ve Kradi Bankasi AS. B Tipl Semsiye Fenu'na bagh Ulkem lgin Buyiime Amagh Degighen Alt Fonu (14, Att
Fon) 000412 - 12.263 -
Yap: ve Krod Bankas) A8, Garanidi Semsiyve Forwna Saih B Tipi % 100 Anapara Garaniik Yimibeging Alt Fon - 0,005¢ - 32.396
Yapt ve Krodi Bankas: AS. Garanlii Semsiye Foruna Bagl B Tipi % 100 Anapara Garaniik Yimialimcl All Fon - 0.0057 - 5,387
Yapt va Kredi Bankast A.S. Garanlili Semsiye Fonuna Badh B Tipi % 100 Anapara Garantili Yimigekizinct Alt Fen - 6.0028 - 2415
Yagi va Kredi Bankasi A.S. B Tipi %100 Anapara Garantill Yirmidohuzunou Al Fon - 0,0045 - 1.431
Yapi ve Kredi Bankast A.S. B Tipi %100 Anapara Garantill Dinamik -Dlzuncu Alt Fon 0,0055 - 3.995
Yag ve Kredi Bankasi A.S, Garantii Semsiye Fonu'na bafh Ozel Sekidr Borglanma Acaglanna Yatinm Yapan B Tipi
<100 Anapam Garantili Qluziininei Al Fonu . - 0,0049 - 13.272
Yam ve Kradi Bankasi A $. Garantili Semsiye Fonu'na tadh Gzal Sekidr Borglanma Araglanna Yatam Yapan B Tip!
%100 Anapara Garaniifi Guziking Alt Fonu i - 6,00254 - 13.642
Yapt ve Kred! Barkas A.5.nin Garantii Semsiye Forurna Bal Ozal Sektdér Borglanma Araglanna Yatinm Yapan B
Tipi %100 Anapara Garantill Quuzicined Alt Fon . 0,0028 5.086 -
Yapi ve Kredi Bankas: AS.'ain Garantili §emsiye Fenu'na Badh Ozel Sekiir Berglanma Araglanna Yaunm Yapan B
Tlpi %2160 Anapara Garmntil Otuzddrdined Alt Foru'na Garanti Vaernlmesi 0,002672 16600 -
Yap! v Xredi Bankas: A.S.'nin Garantili Semsiva Foau'nz Bagh Ozel Sekidr Borglanma Araglarina Yalinm Yapan B
Tipt %100 Anapara Garantili Qtuzbesingt Alt Fon 0,00395 - 4.046 -
Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A S, Garantili $emsiye Fonuna Badu Qzal Sekidr Borglanma Araglanna Yatnm Yapan B Tipt
%100 Anapara Garanlil Qluzaitinel Alt Fonu . 003932 - 10.929 -
Yags ve Kred! Bankas A.S. Garantii Semsiye Forw'na Badh Ozel Sektor Borglanma Araglarma Yaunm Yapan B Tini
24100 Anapara Garaniili Qtuzyedinct Al Fenu 0.03883 16,041 -
Sicav {Sociité dinvestissement & capilal variable) 0,0014 9.054 -
Total Investment Funds 5.550.523 5.311,403
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31.  Other explanations on operations and other matters (continued)

Commission rates Total fund value
December  December December
December 31, 3t, 31, 3,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Fund Name Thousand Thousand
% % TL TL
Allianz Yagam ve Emeklilik A.$ Gelir Amaghk Kamu Borglanma Araglan Emeklilik Yatinm
Fonu 0.0052 0,0052 1.069.742 1.046.381
Allianz Yasam ve Emeklilik A.§ Esnek Emeklilik Yatirm Fonu 0.0055 0,0065 1.514.360 1.095.562
Allianz Yagam v Emelkdilik A,.$ Para Pivasas| Likit Kamu Emeklilik Yatinm Fonu 0.0028 0,0028 274,604 256.859
Allianz Yagam ve Emeklilik A.§ Gelir Amagh Déviz Cinginden Kamu Borglanma Araglan
Emeklilk Yatirim Fonu 0.0052 0,0052 201,180 216.338
Alllanz Yagam ve Emeldilik A.§ BlyUme Amagli Hisse Senedi Emekiiik Yat, Fonu 0.0055 0,0055 251.689 230.633
Allianz Yagam ve Emekiitik A.$ Gelir Amagh Kamu Borglanma Araglan Grup Emelditik
Yatrim Fonu 0.0028 0,0028 178.931 191.814
Allianz Yagam ve Emeklifik A.S Gelir Amagh Kamu Dig Borglamma Araglan Emeklgik Yatiom
Fonu (Euro) 0.0052 0,0052 18,760 10.402
Allianz Yagam ve Emeklilik A.S Esnek (TL) Grup Emeklilik Fonu 0.0028 0,028 182.625 136,242
Allianz Yagam ve Emeklilik A5 Para Piyasas: Emanet Likit - Karma Emekilik Yat. Fonu 0.0028 0,0028 10,900 42,572
Allianz Yagam ve Emeklilic A.S Uluslar arasi Teknoloji Hisse Senedi Emeklilik Yatinm Fonu 0.0055 0,0085 45.768 7.582
Allianz Yasam ve Emeklilik A.S Esnak Daviz Grup Emeklilik Yatinm Fonu 0.0028 0,0028 5.204 5.400
Yapt Kradi Emeklilix A.$ Biyime Amagli Esnek Emektilik Yatinm Fonu 0.0055 0,0055 228.967 162.658
Allianz Yasam ve Emeklilik A.S Pera Y Esnek Grup Emeklilik Yatinm Fonu 0.0034 0,0034 28.479 23.150
Allianz Yagam ve Emeldilik A.S Kog Istirak Endeksi Emeklilik Yatnm Fonu 0.0052 0,0052 14,132 4.569
Allianz Yagam ve Emeklilik A.S Alternalif Esnak Emeklilik Yatirim Fonu G.0055 0,0055 29.734 5310
Allianz Yagam ve Emeidilik A.S IMKB Temetli Endeksi Emeklilik Yatirim Fonu 00052 0,0052 21.905 14.413
Allianz Yagam ve Emeklilik A.S Altin Emeklilik Yatirim Fonu 0.0052 . 11.138 -
Alfianz Yagam ve Emeklilik A.S Standari Emeklilic Yatinm Fonu 0.0052 - 1.968 .
Allianz Yagam ve Emeklilik A.S Kalki Emeklilik Yatinm Fonu 0.0010 . 141.388 -
Total pension funds 4.231.472 3.449.885
Total 9.782.985 8.761.288

b, Capital management and capital adequacy requirements

The Company aims to increase its profit by using liability and equity balance in the most efficient way.
The Group’s funding structure is mainly composed of equity items,

The Company defines and manages its capital in accordance with CMB's Communiqué Series:V
No:34 on capital and capital adequacy of intermediary institutions. According to the related
communique, the equity of intermediary institutions is composed of the portion of total assets, which
are valued according to the valuation principles discussed in Communiqué Series:V No:34 and are
present in the balance sheet prepared as of the valuation date. Communiqué Series:V No:34 and are
present in the balance sheet prepared as of the valuation date. According to the clauses of
Communiqué Series: V No: 34, the amount of equity necessary for an intermediary institution’s trading
operations is TL 845.000 (December 31, 2012: TL 832.000) for the period ended December 31, 2013.
In addition, intermediary institutions are obliged to increase their equity for each capital markets
operation as follows. In this respect, the required equity for the Company is TL 2.120.000 (December
31, 2012; Tl. 2.087.000).

a) For IPO intermediary activities, 50% of equity that is necessary for trading intermediary

b) gzt;\;ggg ,and reverse repoc activities, 50% of equity that is necessary for trading intermediary

c) g?r!\ggertsf,,olio management activities, 40% of equity that is necessary for trading intermediary

d) [e—lco?\ifg;?;s'tment advisory activities, 10% of equity that is necessary for trading intermediary
activities.
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31 - Other explanations on operations and other matters (continued)

According to the Communiqué Series: V No: 34 4" clause, capital adequacy base of intermediary
institutions is equal to the equity which is calculated according to Communiqué Series: V No: 34 31
clause, less net amount of tangible and intangible assets, financial assets not traded in stock
exchanges and any other organized markets net of impairment provision and capital commitments,
other fixed assets, receivables without collaterals from personnel, shareholders, subsidiaries,
associates and persons or entities directly or indirectly related to the company in respect of capital,
management and audit, even if they bear client status, and the amount of capital markets instruments
issued by these persons and entities not traded in stock exchanges and other organized markets.

According to the Communiqué Series: V No: 34 8" clause, capital adequacy base of intermediary
institutions cannot be lower than any of the following: minimum equity amounts corresponding to the
certificates of authorization, risk provisions discussed in Communiqueé Series: V No: 34 or the
operating expenses incurred in the 3 maonihs prior to valuation date.

The Company meets the capital adequacy requirements as of December 31, 2013 and December 31,
2012,

32 - Subsequent evenis

None.



